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It is with great pleasure that the Management
Committee of Newham Monitoring Project
presents our fourteenth Annual Report entitled
Communities of Resistance. Within, we document
notable racial and police harassment cases and
trends, the fightback of local community
associations, the inadequateresponse of statutory
agencies and the struggles, campaigns and
victories of the past year.

However, 1993 was an ominous year for black
and refugee communities across the country.
Racist violencerose dramatically bothin termsof
incidence and intensity. It is now estimated that
there are approximately 130,000 racist attacks a
year in Britain. Additionally, the attacks are
increasingly vicious, senseless and organised,
the assaults on Quddus Aliand Mukhtar Ahmed
being cases in point. The election of a BNP
councillor on the Isle of Dogs further illustrates
the importance of stopping fascism in its tracks
before any further damage is done.

The role of the police, as in past years, has been
beyond contempt. The murder of Joy Gardner
who was suffocated whilst being arrested
pending deportation, the arrest and
criminalisation of the Tower Hamlets Nine and
the deliberate confrontation engineered by the
police with anti-fascists at the Unity
demonstration in Welling are glaring examples
of oppressive policing at its worst.

Although the contents of this report make grim
reading, they also pay tribute to the resistance
and determination of working-class people in
Newham and elsewhere in East London, In 1993,
the Gwendoline Avenue and Second Avenue
community associations demonstrated how racial
and police harassment can be effectively
combatted. And the victorious Dray family
campaign was a classic example of how to
organise against the criminalisation of innocent
people. Allinall, we trust that this year’s Annual
Report bears testimony to the ongoing struggles
of the local community against racist violence
and police malpractice.
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- There are new battles already emerging whigh

require urgent attention:

» The fascists are standing candidates in the May
1994 local elections - it is imperative that no
fascist councillor is elected anywhere in Britain,
particularly in East London.

* Refugees and asylum-seekers are on hunger
strike in prisons and detention centres across the
country - they must be supported by all those
who oppose racist immigration laws which
incarcerate and criminalise those whose only
‘crime’ is to want to live in Britain, free from
attack.

* The Conservative government has proposed
yet more draconian legislation that will revoke
the right of silence and increase the number of
miscarriages of justices - it is vital that the
proposed laws are systematically opposed and
defeated.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank
the workers of NMP who, as ever, have given
time, energy and commitment beyond the call
the duty. We also thank all our volunteers and
supporters without whom we would have been
unable to sustain the campaigns and initiatives
in which we are involved. In doing so, we
condemn the shameful sentences of community
service passed against Lee and Nicholas Pulham
who were convicted of affray in connection with
the violentracist attack on Hossein Zahir, a NMP
worker, and Michael Butler, a NMP volunteer
(see last year’'s Annual Report).

In conclusion, NMP will continue to work with
all those committed to fighting racism and
injustice. But to those who violate our
fundamental rights and liberties and seek to
control us in the manner to which they have
become accustomed, our message by word and
by deed is clear - no justice, no peaca

Newham Monitoring Project
Management Committee
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The main tenet of NMP’s work over the last 14

years has been to provide practical advice and
support to those suffering racial harassment
and police harassment in Newham. This ap-
proach means that casework takes a central
role in the work of NMP. Our method of
working has led us to reject the paternalistic
approach of social adviceand welfare agencies
which is based on an advisor-client relation-
ship. Instead, we adopt a community-based
approach which means, for example, that our
casework is determined by the needs and
concerns of individuals and families them-
selves. Weattempt to givethoseat the centre of
a case real control over the direction that their
case takes. This is achieved by providing
structures whereby individualssuffering racial
or police harassment are involved at every
stage in the dialogue and feedback from
statutory agencies such as the local authority
and the police.

Notes on statistics

However, casework does not exist in isolation
and isnotcarried out simply for the individual
or family concerned. We are always asking
what the wider ramifications are for the whole
community. It is for this reason that NMP
adopts a strategy of building on our casework
to encourage community self-organisationand
defence. The past year’'ssharpincrease in cases
again clearly shows the problem of initiatives
set up by the police and the Council which do
little to strengthen communities under attack.
Often cases demand campaigning work, the
object of which is not only to win this or that
particular case, though this is important, but
also to use the campaign to highlight issues
thrown up by individual cases, and encourage
local people to organise for themselves and
take control of their lives.

Emergency Service

In 1993, 114 or 24% of cases came to the project
via the 24- hour emergency service line. This
service remains unique in the borough. It is a
vital component of NMI”’s casework and an
essential tool in the provision of on-going
practical support to victims of racial
harassment. In our experience the mere
knowledgethat supportisavailable from NMP
volunteer on a 24 basis with just a phone call
has proven itself as a reassurance to those
experiencing violent and often persistent
harassment.

The emergency service volunteers represent
one of the pillars of the project. Without their
continuing and unfailing support much of our
work would remain undone. NMP gratefully
acknowledges their help and support
throughout 1993.

In 1993 NMP saw an increase of 35 cases of
racial harassment. The reasons forthisincrease
are diverse, rooted both in the national and

The statistics below illustrate the patterns of
racist violence across the borough. The statis-
tics cannot, however, show the real impact of
racist violence on real people. They do not
show the systematic torment to which some
families have been subjected. They do not re-
veal how this harassment can gradually destroy
people’slives. The constant abuse, threats and
criminal damage to property can be just as
debilitating as the assaults, stabbings and
beatings.

These figures also fail to reveal the strength,
courage and on-going tradition of resistance
within the black community of Newham. This
resistance takes many forms, whether it be an
individual family refusing to be intimidated
out of an area or families and individuals
organising community associations to resist
the harassment collectively.

Below we document, area by area, the more
alarming cases of racial harassment as well as
cases which raise questions about theresponse
of statutory agencies, chiefly the police and the
council. The areas included are those which
are of particular note.

East qu

" In the past, we have repeatedly warned abofit

harassment taking place in the Vicarage Lane
area of East Ham around Folkestone Road and
Goosely Lane, E6. We reported in the 1991/
1992 Annual Report on racial harassment in
this area, and, indeed, warned that ‘East Ham
South is fast developing into a no-go area’.
Unfortunately, these warnings have proven
justified. Throughout 1993, we received nu-
merous reports of harassment in the Folkestone
Road and Goosely Lane area. It appears that
much of the harrasment has been supported
by or hasinvolved fascists. The fact that Steven
(O'Shea, a well-known BNP member, lives in
Folkestone Road is undoubtedly related to the
rise in racist attacks in the area.

& The Z family has lived in Gooseley Lane for
many years, suffering from sporadic incidents
of verbal abuse and threats. They had not,
however, experienced any physical attacks on
their home. In 1993, the harassment intensified
with the family car being damaged, death threats
and petrol being poured through the letter box
and set alight. The ensuing fire caused severe
smoke damage to the porch, but fortunately a
fire proof rug failed to catch light and so the fire

(1)These cases do not fit neatly into the categories of either racial local nomi d political diti O
orpoliceharassment, butare linked to questions of institutionalised 0cal, economic and political condiions. n a

racism (2) This only refers to calls during non-officehours (3) This  mnoreconcrete level though there are a number
refers to cases referred to us by voluntary and statutory agencies.  of factors we have identified which




NEWHAM MONITORING PROJECT

did not spread. In subsequent months, the har-
assment continued unabated.

At present, we are monitoring the situation
with the Z family. We have successfully de-
manded the installation of security measures
including a fire-proof letter box, protective
film on the windows and a video camera.
None of the perpetrators in this case have yet
been caught.

It should be noted that the Z family own their
home. This means that although they are
technically entitled to the limited support the
council offers its tenants, in practice as we
pointed out in the 1992/1993 Annual Report,
owner occupiers are in practise denied this
service. In the case of this family, they are not,
despite thearsonattack, eligible to be re-housed
by the council.

& Mrs 5 lived with her two children in Folke-
stone Road. They had been suffering harass-
ment for some time when in early August 1993,
the attacks intensified in both frequency and
severity. On7 August, Mrs$’s 12-year-old sonZ
was assaulted by a group of boys who would
gather beside Blaney Crescent (off Folkestone
Road).On 15 August, Mrs Swasverbally abused
and despite being five months pregnant, was
jostled and kicked. On 16 August, she was as-
saulted on her way to a public phone box, as she
tried to get away form a gang of local youths
who threw stones at her and shouted racial
abuse. On 17 August six youths would not let
her outof a public phone box - they continued to
abuse and threaten her until she managed to
escape.

On 18 August, following another emergency
service call from Mrs S, a NMTP volunteer at-
tended her home. Mrs S complained that the
same group of youths were throwing stones at
Z and were threatening and abusing her. She
was in an extremely distressed state and had
already called the police. When the police ar-
rived, Z pointed out the youths. The NMP
volunteer naturally demanded that the police
take action against the youths. Typically, the
police not only failed to take any action because
they ‘didn’t want to chase kids across a park’,
but they went so far as to imply that Mrs S was
only alleging the harassment was racial because
a NMP volunteer was present. When Mrs 5
confirmed that she had been abused, the officer
insisted he would take no further action and left.

The NMP volunteer remained with the family
until dawn.

On 23 Augustat 6.30 pm, Z was playing outside
his home when a group of ten white boys, aged
between 14 and 16, verbally abused him. Z
began to back away when one of the group
known to Z as John' attacked him. Z was
punched to head and knocked to the ground
and kicked repeatedly in the face. As Z stag-
gered to his feet, he noticed one of the youths
approaching with a plank of wood - he ran
home with the gang pursuing him. Mrs S again
called the policeand the NMP emergency service
line. Whereas NMP volunteers got there within
ten minutes, the police took over an hour. On
thisoccasion, theofficerstook action and arrested
the youth ‘John’, who was so confident that he
had not even run away. Incredibly, despite the
serious nature of the assault and the fact that Z
suffered a broken nose, the police simply cau-
tioned the youth and released him.

It is important to understand the impact that
racial harassment can have on a child as young
as Z. He had begun, out of fear for his own
safety, tocarryabaseball bat withhim when he
went outside. Moreover, he possessed a
veritable armoury of weaponsin his bedroom.

In September 1993, the S family were moved
from Folkestone Road.

& Mrs B and her children moved to Eastbourne
Road off Folkestone Road in September 1990,
after having been told by the council’s Home-
less Persons Unit that if they didn’t move they
would end up ‘on the streets’. By January 1993,
Mrs B was pleading with the council to be
transferred. Sticks and stones were regularly
thrown against the kitchen window, often caus-
ing damage - this only stopped when NMP
demanded security measures be installed. The
harassmentescalated to the point where Mrs B's
son wasbeing repeatedly mugged on the way to
the shops and racially abused. Stickers from far
right groups were stuck on their door and soiled
nappies and excrement were shoved through
the letter box and smeared on the windows. On
one occasion, Mrs B was returning with her
children from school when she was confronted
by a number of youths. She was threatened with
a knife and her son was assaulted.

On 3 September 1993, Mrs B was on her way
home when she was approached by a group of
white youths, The youths screamed Pakis go

home’, blocked her path and savagely beat her.
Mrs B sustained injuries to her head and face as
well as bruising on her body. It appears the
youths went so far as to use a metal weapon to
beat her across her arms.

Mrs B’s doctor became fearful for her health
and wrote independently to the council that he
would be ‘grateful if it would be at all possible
for her to be offered alternative accommoda-
tion in view of the exacerbation of her medical
condition due to these developments'.

The response of the council was to hold an
emergency meeting at which it was confirmed
that Mrs B was on the priority transfer list. The
best that the police could do was to suggest a
‘joint visit’ witha police officeraround the area
so that the perpetrators could be identified.
Given the lack of practical support that the
police provided the B family, this offer wasnot
taken up.

# The S family moved into Folkestone Road in
December 1992. As in the case of Mrs B, they
were told by the Homeless Persons Unit that
they had to accept the property and any refusal
would be deemed “unreasonable’. The S family
were neverinformed about the severity of racial
harassment in the area nor were they advised
that it is council policy that in such areas, refus-
ing an offer is not infact, unreasonable.

InJanuary 1993, the S family notified the council
that they were suffering racial harassment. On
analmostdaily basis, the family were being spat
at, racially abused and threatened. They had to
endure the indignity of wiping excrement off
their windows and clearing it from their path.
The S children had to run a regular gauntlet of
abuse and assaults even on the most mundane
outing. The family car had paint and excrement
thrown over it and was eventually stolen.
Stickers from far right groups were stuck on

their front door.

On 18 September 1993 at around 10 pm, Mr S
heard a loud banging on the front door. When
he looked out of the window, he saw three
youths taunting him, one armed with a baseball
bat. The three youths then walked off and
joined a group of fifteen or so up the road.
Fearing for their safety, the family took the
remarkably brave step of venturing out to a
public phonebox, in view of the youths, in order
to call the NMP emergency service line and the

¥

police. Onarrival, the police searched thg youths
and sent them away. On 4 November 1993, a
window was broken. The next day, another
window was broken, and a number of youths
congregated outside their home singing ‘Rule
Britannia’, Finally, on the 11 December 1993, the
5 children, aged 8 and 10, were set upon agld
beaten by a group of youths, the oldest being
about 15- years-old. The children were bruised
and shaken. The next morning, dog excrement
was smeared on the doors. The S family could
simply take no more.

Throughthe intervention of NMP’s emergency
service volunteer, the family were moved to a
bed and breakfast that night. At present, the
family still visit Folkestone Road during the
days, and NMP continues to provide support.

Inadequote statutory response

In the case of the 5 family, in particular, the
response of the council’s housing department
has been blatantly irresponsible. On the 17
August 1993, eight months after the S family
moved in, they were informed by the District
Housing Manager that they were not ‘ad-
equately advised at the time the property was
offered”. In a letter addressed to NMP dated
the 27 August 1993, the same manager stated
that it was ‘unfortunate’ this property was
allocated to the S family and it was done so by
an officer “unfamiliar with the property’. Nei-
ther of these admissions is apparently of any
use to the S family as it has no bearing on their
attempts to escape the harassment. The ques-
tion which is so often left unanswered in cases
such as this is how can the Homeless Persons
Unit be allowed to badger and scare people
into accepting properties in areas which put
their lives at risk, when its own officers do not
know which areas have a high incidence of
racial harassment and the housing department
refuses to rectify such incompetence.

It was clear from the beginning that the harass-
ment in the Folkestone Road area was serious
and probably involved the sarfe group of in-
dividuals. It was only in July. and A% gust 1993
that it gradually became apparent:that.the
harassment was co-ordinated and that the far-
right appeared to be behind it. We discovered
that Steven O’Shea, an activist. in the fascist
British National Party, actually lived in Folke-




stone Road.

In August 1993, we warned ina letter, concern-
ing Mrs B’s case, that the harassment appeared
organised. In September 1993, we were forced
to step up regular nightly visits to all the fami-
lies in the area which we sustained from mid-
September to mid-October in an attempt to
provide some practical support. Many of the
families did not, however, feel confident
enough to give evidence against the perpetra-
tors. Given the stark choices facing the families
such hesitation is understandable. On the one
hand, they were faced with the prospect of the
police, in the event they believed the families
under seige, doing littte more than ‘cautioning’
those perpetrators they caught. On the other
hand, there was the housing department’s
lengthy eviction process whichcould beutilised
incases where sufficientevidence wasamassed
against specific perpertrators. In either event,
the perpetrators are not obviously dissuaded
and the families are once again left with no or
little support.

Due to the proximity of these families to one
another, the option of launching a ‘community
association” was considered and, in fact, two
meetings were held. However, the families did
not feel sufficiently confident to organise and
sustaina fightbackand simply wanted to escape
the violence.

Racial harassment in East Ham was not con-
fined to the Folkestone Road area - in 1993 we
dealt with 30 cases in the E6 area.

B Mr [ lived in Market Street, E6 for some time.
He was the victim of harassment on a regular
basis in the first few months of 1993. This har-
assment was linked to the ‘Flanders community
club” in Napier Road, E6 - around the corner
from the Mr I's home. The increase in Mr I's
problems coincided with the increasing popu-
larity of the club, especially late on Saturday
nights. InFebruary 1993, MrInotified thecouncil
that he was being verbally abused by youths
fromthe club. Infact, Mr I repeatedly complained
of harassment, which included rubbish being
pushed through his letter box, paint being
daubed on his front door, racist graffiti being
painted on the wall and constantbanging on his
front door. On one occasion, in fact, his front
door was smashed open. When police were
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Mr I's house after the arson altack

called, an individual from the club was identi-
fied as the perpetrator, but to avoid further
exacerbating the situation Mr [ decided not to
press charges.

On 11 April 1993, Mr I returned home at 8.30 pm
and went straight upstairs. Within minutes, he
heard aloud noise from downstairs. Despite the
fact that such noise was a regular occurrence,
Mrldecided to investigate. He wentdownstairs
and opened the living room door only to be
confronted by a wall of flames. As he turned
away, he saw a young white man run out of his
house. Mr | required emergency treatment for
burns to his face and hands. His house was
totally gutted. All his possessions were burnt
and thehouse charred. MrIwaslucky to escape
with his life.

NMP immediately provided Mr [ with practical
support. We helped him seek temporary accom-
modation and sort out various insurance mat-
ters.

Not surprisingly, Mr I was extremely fright-
ened and traumatised by the arson attack. Ina
letter to NMP dated 30 April 1993, a senior
housing officer stated that ‘it is quite clear that
the racial incidents are linked with the Flan-
ders Community Centre with disturbances
caused by the Youth Club and more serious
disturbances caused by late night weekend
drinking at the club bar.” He also went on to
say that ‘prior to the fire, Leisure Services had

been contacted to commence an investigation
into the community centre’. We immediately
demanded that the club be shut down and the
perpetrators be arrested. Newham Council,
however, closed ranks on the matter. Rather
than take action against the perpetrators, they
back-tracked and inaletter dated 24 May 1993,
the same officer quoted above stated that ‘The
statement was not intended to implicate mem-
bers of the community centre or the manage-
ment committee.” Leisure Services went so far
as to say that ‘'no evidence has been found to
link the Flanders Club with the incidents’. Mr
L, however, remains adamant that his attackers
were from the club and has reiterated that the
trouble only took place when the club was
open late at night. His home is directly in the
path of the club users.

Mr I was provided with minimal support by
the council and the police in the course of his
ordeal. Nevertheless, he has bravely returned
to his home, even though the housing depart-
ment is reluctant to provide him with the nec-
essary security arrangements on the grounds
of cost.

Manor Park

In 1993 we dealt with 23 incidents of racial
harassment in the Manor Park area. Although
this is substantiaily less than that recorded in
the south of the borough, Manor Park and the
North East of Newham continue to cause con-
cern. In December 1991, Panchadcharam
Sahitharan, a Tamil refugee, was murdered in

YOUTH IN
ATTACK

A THUG has been detained for three years for

his part in a racially-motivated “revenge” axe

attack on a Bengali boy

Mk Simith, 18, was “tooked up” with ut least shree
i

s brully beaten. kicked ped then

i sutfered a gaping head wound, a
m fingger and severe biuising

Newham Recorder 16 March 1994

MM after the aftack

Manor Park. We were informed that there
were on-going fights between groups of white
and black youths in and around Second Av-
enue, E12 and near the Three Rabbits Pub.

@ On 17 June 1993 at approximately 7.30 prmn,
MM (aged 14) was standing at a bus stop with a
friend when he was approached by a group of
white men. The group surrounded MM and his
friend and asked them detailed questions about
agroup of black youths allegediy involved inan
attack on a white boy the day before. MM made
itclear thathe had no knowledge of the attack or
its perpetrators and was simply waiting for a
bus. It appeared the men were satisfied. But
suddenly one of the men turned around, pulled
an axe or machete from his jacket and struck
MM on the back of the head with it. As MM fell
to the floor, he was kicked, punched and hit
repeatedly with another weapon. MM’s friend
managed to escape, narrowly missing a similar
beating. MM suffered a large wound to the back
of his head requiring 10-12 stitches, two broken
fingers as well as bruises to the head, face and
body.

This was the second time that MM had
been attacked in 1993, Of the five men
who attacked him, three were subse-
quently arrested and charged with
grievous bodily harm, and two were never
caught.

Shortly after this viciousassault, NMP received
information from a number of sources that the
attack was part of an on-going conflict in the
area following attacks on youngsters in Little
llford Park. We were also infornged that the
group of white youths involved were known
as the ‘Snowshill boys’ from the notorious
Snowshill Road area of Manor Park. It appears
thatfollowing theattacks in the park and alleg-
edly threats made to alocal mosque, there was
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a fight on 16 June 1993 between a group of
black and white youths at which a white youth
was stabbed and seriously injured. Inresponse
to this apparently escalating situation, NMP
workers and volunteers met with a number of
localgroups and businesses as well as the chair
of the local mosque. The network that devel-
oped enabled us to respond rapidly to further
problems. The council issued an urgent brief-
ing for councillors, and the police stepped up
foot and car patrols in the area. It seems that
after the attack on MM, there were a number of
further incidents, though none as serious. At
present, the situation has been relatively calm
for some months.

NMP has also spoken to a number of the black
youths allegedly involved in these events and
reaffirmed our commitment to support those
who defended themselves in the face of such
extreme racist violence.

Snowshill Road

The area around Snowshill Road and the adja-
cent estates has had a reputation for excep-
tionally high rates of racial harassment, par-
ticularly during the early 1980s when some of
the most vicious attacks took place in the area.
Inthelast few years, however, the attacks seem
to have reduced in intensity and frequency. It
now appears that racial harassment is once
again becoming a serious problem in the area.

B The 5 family moved into Snowshill road, E12
in June 1993. In August 1993, their family home
was attacked for the first time. Youths gathered
outside throwing stones at the windows and
shouting abuse through theletter box. According
to the council, the harassment was being per-
petrated by agroupof youihs who ‘were causing
problems for all residents’. And that ‘asaresult
of increased police patrols, the situation has
now improved.” Yet on the 5 November 1993,
Mr S rang the NMP emergency service linein a
distressed state to report thatalarge lit firework
had been placed through his letter box and had
exploded in the hall. At the time of his call, he
said 10-12 youths were gathering at the top of
his road. The police officers who responded to
this incidentinformed the S family that this was
not the only attack in the area on that night;
indeed, there had been other attacks in that very
street.
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The S family are currently awaiting a transfer
out of the area.

We have also received reports of further at-
tacks in the Snowshill Road area including an
incident involving shots being fired from an

air gun. Clearly, the situation in this part of
Manor Park has not yet quietened sufficiently
for black families to live safely and peacefully.

Warrior Squcre

B Ms F lived on the fourth floor of a tower block
in Warrior Square, E12 with two young chil-
dren. Over a period of months, she became the
target of a vicious and on-going campaign of
racial harassment. She was repeatedly abused,
spatatand threatened. On 24 February 1993, she
wasracially abused; later the same day, she was
threatened and told’yourkids will die”. The next
day, she was further threatened on two occa-
sions. Then on the 28 February 1993, an object
was thrown from an upstairs window which
struck Ms F's two-year-old child. This became a
regular pattern of harassment with objects be-
ing thrown at Ms F, her children and friends
accompanying her.

The harassment was taking a serious toll not
only on Ms Fbutalso on her seven-year-old son
T who was according to his school, in March
1993, presenting ‘disturbing behaviour patterns
at school ... a causal factor in this pattern is the
racial harassment to which she and her child are
subjected athome apparently from neighbours.

The housing department’s response to the har-
assment was, according to Ms F, to simply tell
her that they could only offer her a two-week
stay in a bed and breakfast before returning her
to the tower block. A council panel awarded the
family the minimum number of points in a
racial harassmentcase. We continued todemand
practical supportincluding security film for the
windows of the house. Unfortunately, these
measures were not installed and one of her
windows was smashed on 16 March 1993. Then
on 18 March 1993, Ms F was physically attacked
by a white man in the lobby of her tower block.
Themangrabbed her by the throat, punched her
and violently banged her head against the wall.
After thisattack, the family were moved toabed
and breakfast for their own safety.

Despite the housing department’s protesta-
tions to the contrary, it is clear that Ms F and
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Windows broken at Ms F's house

her children did not need to suffer such vio-
lence, abuse and degradation at the hands of
local racists. Had a serious attempt been made
to find the perpetrators rather than, inthe view
of Ms F, simply “fobbing her off!’, then the
situation need not have escalated or, at the
very least, Ms F could have been moved to
safety earlier. At present, Ms F is close to
moving into a permanent property with her
two children and will hopefully be able to
recover from the trauma of months of racist
violence.

West Hom

In the 1992/93 Annual Report, we highlighted
the case of Mrs 5, a single mother from Milner
Road, who had experienced serious and con-
tinuing racial harassment. She had to endure
attacks not just on herself but on her children
aswell. In1993, it became clear that the harass-
ment Mrs S was suffering on her estate was not
isolated and that a large number of other fami-
lies werealsothreatened. Theestate inquestion
was the Woodlands estate beside West Ham
Station.

Woodlands Estate

This estate houses a number of convicted rac-
ists as well as Stephen O’ Connell, the organ-
iser of the British National Party’s Newham
branch. Stickers from far-right groups have
appeared repeatedly in the area condemning
‘Race mixing’, often with crude racist carica-
tures. By April 1993, a number of families had
contacted us about their fears of further at-
tacks.
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@ In May 1993, the P family contacted NMP,
stating that since December 1992, they had been
receiving on-going racial abuse and threats. On
one occasion, Mrs P was stoned on her way to
the shops. The door bell was repeatedly rung
and racial abuse shouted over the intercom.
When the P family contacted us, the situagion
had deteriorated to the extent that Mrs P was, in
fact, too intimidated to leave her home.

B On 23 May 1993, Mrs R was walking to the
shops with her young son when she was con-
fronted by a young white boy who pushed his
bicycle into her child, knocking him over. The
white boy then sped off, shouting racial abuse at
MrsR. Sheis often racially abused as she leaves
her block. She has had stones thrown at her and
has been spat on as she goes to the shops. The
perpetrators in this case are all aged between 10
and 17.

8 In April 1993, the front door of Mrs H's flat
was covered inracist and sexist graffiti. Sheisa
white woman with mixed race children, and
some of the scrawls were sickening references to
her children. She was also forced to endure
repeated racial abuse, especially on her visits to
the shops. Mrs H was also threatened on more
than one occasion and frequently stayed away
from her home to avoid further harassment. She
was finally transferred off the estate.

Grdfitli on Woodlands Estate

InFebruary 1993, wereceived a report of stones
being thrown at a black carpenter as he
boarded upahouse on Durban Rdxd, E15. We
were also informed that the cars of at least two
black families in this road had been set alight.

Many of the above incidents were, however,




not reported to the police. Families who spoke
to us often stressed that they did not want the
police informed. The reason for this was more
often than not a fear of retaliation and an
anticipation of the police inaction and insensi-
tivity. Take the case of Mrs S from Milner
Road.

# Mrs S had been experiencing racial harass-
ment for some considerable period of time (as
reported in the 1992/93 Annual Report) when
in March 1993, she was informed by the housing
department thatsheand her children were soon
tobemoved. On4 April 1993, before a final offer
of accommeodation could be made to Mrs S, her
family were once again subjected to further
violence. Her two young children, A, {aged 5)
and S, (aged 3), were playing in the small garden
attheback of their house. Asin the past,agroup
of white youths aged 10-15 began throwing
stones at A and S. S attempted to hide from the
stones being thrown, but being only three, she
was not fast encugh and was struck on the head
by a stone with sufficient force to knock her
down. As the youths ran away, they left Sbleed-
ing and apparently concussed. Mrs S, who had
relatives with her, pressed the emergency alarm
provided by the council and requested an am-
bulance. While she was tending to S, her rela-
tives ran to a nearby address which they saw the
youths run to. Naturally, Mrs §'s relatives
knocked on the door in an attempt to confront
the parents of these youths. Thedoor wasopened
by a woman who, on hearing the allegations,
shouted ‘bollocks you Paki - go away’. When
asked to stop her children from harassing MrsSS,
the womanreplied ‘they didn’t do it, if they did,
then good - what are you going to do about it?”
A small crowd gradually gathered, threatening
Mrs §'s relatives who, therefore, withdrew. Po-
lice officers attending the scene made straight
for this small crowd and spoke to the abusive
woman. They then returned to Mrs S and stated
simply that there was nothing they could do - it
wasonly established through subsequentcorre-
spondence that this was because the main child
involved was under ten-years-old. As for the
dispute with the abusive woman, officers
avoided taking action by claiming this was a
neighbourhood dispute and notan issue for the
police. Mrs S also claims the officers not only
chastised her for using the alarm system but
appeared to doubt that the injuries to 5 were
caused by children throwing stones, hinting at
other causes such as S falling over. They pro-
vided no proof for such suspicions. Within weeks
of this incident, Mrs S moved out of West Ham
altogether.
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After further consultation with Newham Monitoring
Project, the Students’Union now has a greater ¥nowledge
of the extent of racist attacks around the Woodlands’
area.

One tamily in particular, who live in Durban Road have
been targeted by these racists. The family have had all
their windows in their house smashed. The Mather of the
tamily had had on several ocrasiens, both verbal and
physical attacks directed at her. Her two year ofd child
has had its head split open with a brick. This famiiy lives
in constant terror, not knowing when or where the next
racist attack will take place.

A gecond woman has been targeted who lives In the
Woodlands vicinity. She has had her fiat broken inte, on
several occasions, and had it covered in racist and
sexual graffiti, the like of "black man’s whore™, The sole
reason for her beirig attacked is because her partner i
black,

The Students’ Union is asking for as much information
znd help from the residents of Woodlands to ensure that
these attacks stop.

i there are any of our students involved in thesea attacks,
teli us, we need to Know.

Racist scum have no right to be in our Educational
Institution, our Halls of Residence, nor in the wider
community either.

Racism affects us all, it is' like a disease that breeds
suspicion, hatred and contempt. Everybody shouid pfay
their role, no matter how small, in stamping out these
racists from the Woodlands community,

STOP THE RACIST
ATTACKS!

UEL Studenis’ Union leaflet on Woodlands Estate

Onthe Woodlands Estate, therearealsoalarge
number of flats used by students from the
University of East London. We, therefore, met
with student union officials who were very
helpful in assisting us visit families and pass-
ing on information. Indeed, the union went so
far as to produce a joint leaflet with NMP
condemning racism and asking students to be
vigilant on the estate. We pointed out that a
number of students had also been victims of
harassment on the estate.

In relation to the perpetrators, it is clear that
many of them are juveniles who loiter in or
around a small parade of shops on the edge of
the estate. These youths, some of whom have
tacit links to far-right elements, have been
implicated in a number of attacks on black
families. The council appears to have accepted
thatitis the ‘Ioitering youths around the shops
who are causing the trouble’ and have re-
quested the police to take action.

At present, the trouble on the estate does not
seem to be as severe as in previous months.
The reality is, however, that unless the youths
who congregate by the shops are provided for
or dealt with, the problem will continue and
may possibly be exploited by the far-right,
who will thrive onthealienationand economic
disadvantage that exists on this estate.

Chargeable Street revisited

In the 1992/93 Annual Report, we reported at
length on racial harassment in the Chargeable
Street area of West Ham, on the outstanding
efforts of the West Ham Ethnic Welfare Asso-
ciation to challenge council and police com-
plicity with the problem and on the failures of
the multi-agency approach favoured by the
council and the police.

After a brief period of calm, the violence has
recently referred to Chargeable Street.

@ In Pebruary 1994, SH was walking through
the alleyway at the end of Chargeable Street
when he was confronted by three white men
who jostled and pushed him. SH’s response was
to ask ‘what’s that for?” The three men then
kicked and punched him. As SH turned torun,
one of the men picked up a brick and threw itat
SH's head. The impact of the brick was such that
SH received a serious head injury and concus-
sion. He was rushed to hospital immediately.
Despite a number of local white tenants wit-
nessing the incident, not one came forward to
offer help or information. The alley is a well-
known danger spot for the families in this area;
in fact, it was here that a black youth was at-
tacked two yearsago and so severely beaten that
his leg was badly broken, resultingin him being
hospitalised for over a month.

To the families in the Chargeable Street area, it
is clear that despite multi-agency attempts to
initiate grand schemesand collective responses
the racial harassment that has so plagued the
black families in the area has not stopped. Both
NMP and the families have repeatedly de-
manded that those who suffer from this har-
assment should be placed at the centre of any
strategy devised by statutory agencies. Unless
this happens and action is taken against the
perpetrators, the harassment will continue
unabated.

South Newham

South Newham, which encompasses Beckton,
Canning Town, Custom House, North
Woolwich and Silvertown, has for many years
had the highest rates of racial harassment, not
only in Newham but often inthe whole country.
In 1993, we dealt with 59 cases in south New-
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ham. These included the murder of Fisdz Mirza,
a mini-cab driver killed by racists from Cus-
tom House, and a brutal assault on an NMP
worker and volunteer. We anticipate the BNP
standing candidates in this area during the
May 1994 local elections.

£

Beckfon

B On 19 February 1993, Mr A, who lives on the
Winsor Park estate in Beckton, was walking
home after visiting friends elsewhere on the
estate. He wasaccompanied by afriend, MrRA,
who also lives on the estate. As the two men
approached a roundabout on the edge of the
estate, they were stopped by a white man who
shouted ‘I'm gonna kill you, you Paki bastard’,
atMr A. Mr A and Mr RA continued to walk on
but the man persisted in harassing them. Mr A
was pushed, punched on the back of his head
and kicked. Atthis point, the man was joined by
another man and two women. Mr A suffered
verbal abuseand thenall four individuals joined
ina physical attack againsthim. The two women
blocked Mr A’s path and ashe attempted to pass
them, one of the men struck him over the head
with what appeared to be a whiskey bottle.
Meanwhile, Mr RA had managed to escape and
alert friends. The attack continued with Mr A
being knocked to the ground, his attackers kick-
ing and hitting him. By the time Mr A’s friends
had arrived, the attackers had fled leaving him
lying semi-consciouson the ground. Hisinjuries
included a deep gash on the head, a badly
swollen left cheek, bruising around his left eye,
loose teeth and injuries on his back and arms.

Mr A’s attackers were later arrested and
charged by officers from the Newham Organ-
ised Racial Incident Squad (NORIS). They have
been convicted and sent to prison. Beckton,
however, continues to cause concern. Most of
the houses in the area are new and many are
under the control of housing associations. We
have, therefore, made links with most of the
major housing associations and have been
asked to provide information on practical
services provided by NMP, such as our 24-
hour emergency service line.

Canning Town

In the past few years, racial harassment in the
once notorious area of Canning Town, ap-
peared to bedeclining. In 1993, the trend seems




to have been reversed with a significant in-
crease in the number of attacks reported to us
either directly by victims of racist violence or
via local agencies.

i@ In October 1993, Mr H from Liverpool Road,
E16 contacted NMP to complain of racial har-
agsment. It had begun three years previously
when his windows had been broken by stones,
and eggs and rubbish had been thrown at his
family’s home. The situation worsened and in
November 1992, fireworks were thrown at Mrs
H and her daughter as they walked home.
Sporadic harassment continued until late Sep-
tember 1993 when rubbish was thrown into
their garden and milk bottles and empty lager
cans were thrown at their front door. In sub-
sequent weeks, stones were thrown at the
windows and the garden fence was damaged.

The harassment was taking a serious toll on the
health of the family, especially Mr and Mrs H
who both suffer from diabetes. Indeed, on
more than one occasion, Mrs H came close to
collapsing as aconsequence of the harassment.
Finally, due to pressure from NMP, the family
were moved in December 1993.

B The I Family, also living in Liverpool Road,
became the targets of what appears to be the
same gang. From early January 1993, when they
moved into the neighbourhood, they suffered
frequent harassment. Rubbish was thrown into
their garden, windows were broken, doors were
banged, the garden fence was smashed and
there was repeated verbal abuse. The harass-
ment gradually increased in intensity to the
point that the I children were reluctant to play
outside. Indeed, in September 1993, a brick was
thrown at the seven year-old son. The family
clearly expressed the wish to move from the
area and following the intervention of NMP, the
family were fransferred out.

Custom House and Silvertown

Inrecent years, Custom Houseand Silvertown
have suffered from high levels of racist vio-
lence and have been noted for particularly
vicious attacks. Many of the black families in
this area are refugees - these families are often
left to fend for themselves withlittle or none of
the structured community networks that exist
in the rest of the borough. Consequently,
many of them feel extremely isolated and vul-
nerable.

The murder of Fiaz Mirza

@ On Friday 26 February 1993, Mr Fiaz Mirza, a
mini cab driver from Manor Park, drove two
white men to Custom House, Within hours, he
was dead. Mr Mirza was the third Newham
resident to be murdered by racists in 14 months.
He is survived by his wife and 4 children.

The tragic facts of Mr Mirza's murder are as
follows: On the night in question, Mark Lee
walked into New Central mini-cabs on Barking
Road, E6. He asked for a cab to Custom House
and was pointed to Mr Mirza's cab. FHe directed
Mr Mirza to Custom House but on the way
asked him to stop at the Boleyn pub to collect a
friend, Ricky Lee (no relation). Another cab
driver saw this and radioed his controller to ask
if Mr Mirza was alright; it was confirmed that
Mr Mirza was fine.

Events from this point onwards are based on
Mark Lee's statement to the police and the pros-
ecution case at trial. Mark Lee had apparently
been to pay hisrespects to Bobby Moore at West
Ham United’s football ground, Upton Park.
Thereafter, Mark and Ricky Lee had decided to
catch a cab home. On the way, they crossed
Connaught bridge and told Mr Mirza to stop his
cab. When the car had stopped, Mark Lee de-
manded that Mr Mirza hand over his money;
Mr Mirza refused and they all got out of the car.
Mark Lee then brutally attacked Mr Mirza,
punching himin the face and body and, accord-
ing to evidence from the post-mortem, kicking
him. At this point, Ricky Lee also joined in the
attack, and Mr Mirza was apparently knocked
unconscious. The two robbed Mr Mirza of his
nights takings (£30-40), but not content with
this, and clearly motivated by racial hatred, they
bundled him into the back of the car and drove
towards the docks, where they knew they would
not be disturbed. They crashed the car through
gate 37 of the Albert Docks and drove to the
water’s edge. Mr Mirza managed to jump from
the back seconds before the car, which Ricky
and Mark Lee had escaped from, hit the water.
The two then went back to where Mr Mirza had
fallen and proceeded to attack him again; ac-
cording to the prosecution, they beat him vio-
lently on his head and body. The two then claim
Mr Mirza ‘fell into the water’. Itis notdisputed
that when Mr Mirza was in the water, he was
still alive, but despite the fact that he could
swim, he was in such a shattered physical state
that he subsequently drowned. Mr Mirza had
over 10 wounds to his head and fifteen wounds
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JURY TOLD HURT CAB DRI VER WAS THROWN INTO WATER

to his shoulders, ribs, limbs, wrists, knees and
inner thigh. His body was recovered from the
river some days later.

At Newham Magistrates Court where Mark
and Ricky Lee were committed for trial to the
Old Bailey, NMP supporters in the public gal-
lery were shocked to discover that BNP sup-
porters were present as well. It appeared that
members of the BNP (possibly C18) had decided
to come to court to show their support for Mr
Mirza’s killers. On a further occasion, in antici-
pation of another BNP presence, over a dozen
NMFP supporters were mobilised but the fascists
did not turn up.

During the Cld Bailey trial, the main issue of
contention was whether Mark and Ricky Lee
intended to kil Mr Mirza or whether MrMirza’s
death was an accident. Both defendants pleaded
guilty to robbery but not guilty to murder. They
claimed that most of Mr Mirza’s injuries were
caused by the car falling into the river and Mr
Mirza’s leap from the boot. Additionally, Ricky
Lee claimed he was drunk at the time and could
not remember much of the night’s events.

During the course of the trial, it transpired that
Mark Lee had been arrested following a call to
Crimestoppers by his step-mother who informed
the police that T am calling about the missing
cab driver, he’s in the docks, put there by Mark
Lee and Ricky Lee, he went down with his car,
they did it for the hell of it". Tt also emerged at
trial that Mark Lee was having a sexual relation-
ship, described as incest, with his step-sister
Julie and that he had told her of the incident.

The defence attempted to portray Mark Lee’s
actions as irresponsible and reckless but not
motivated by racial hatred or any intention to
murder Mr Mirza. Despite this, he was con-
victed and sentenced to lifeimprisonment with
a minimum of 22 years custody. Throughout
the trial, Ricky Lee was portrayed as being
little more than a drunk spectator with no
active part in the murder of Mr Mirza. He only
got involved, the defence argued, out of mis-
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dock death

TW(O white youths murdered an Asian
minicab driver then ‘“‘laughed and joked™
about the killing, it was alleged.

Ricky Lee, 18, and Mark Lee, 22, no relation, beat
Fiaz Mirza, drove his car into Silvertown’s Royal
Albert Dock and then threw him in, a jury heard.

Before and after the killing, the pair =
went to West Ham United’s ground to
pay their respects to Bobby Moeore who
had died that week.

Ricky Lee, of Alnwick Road, Cuslom
House, and Mark Lee of Randolph Approach,

Custom House, deny murder.

Mark Lee has admitted robbery. Ricky Lee
denies the charpe.

Prosecutor  Robert Harman
QC tcid an Old Bailey jury the
pair were responsible for & mur-
der which was '‘brutal, callous
and apparently motivated by
greed and raciel hatred®’.

Mr Mirza, 42, worked at New
Central Minicabs in  Barking
Roud, East Ham.

@ Victim Mr Mirza

Mark Lee wen! to the office
and asked for a car.

Mr Mirza was told to drive to
Connaught Bridge, where, it was
alleged, he was violently robbed.

Escape

. Said counsel: “'They put him
in the boot, drove to the dock
and smashed through the gates.

“Mr Mirza managed 1o escape
as the defendants caused the car
to drive into deep water.
. ““They beat him and threw him
}n_the water. Mr Mirza, in his
injured condition,, had no opp-
ortunity to climb out.>”

The court was rold the pair
made a joke about the incident
during a telepkone call.

‘When arrested, Mark Lee cl-
aimed they were playing *chick-
en” and Mr Mirza failed to jump
from the car. The trisl continues.

guided loyalty to Mark Lee. Nevertheless,
Ricky Lee was also found guilty of murder and
sentenced to life imprisonment. As the judge
pointed out, both menclearly intended to harm
Mr Mirza, rob him and subsequently kill him.
The judge pointed out that being drunk was
not a valid defence .

In this case, the prosecution, a§ an gxception to
the rule, clearly raised the isstié of racism,
claiming that the primary motivation for the
killing of Mr Mirza was racial. The judge also
acknowledged that the actions of Mark and
Ricky Lee were motivated by racial hatred.




NMP has always argued thatany effective and
longterm response to racist violence must be
rooted in those black communities facing the
brunt of the violence. Consequently, we stress
the importance not only of working day inand
day out with families and individuals under
attack but also of encouraging and facilitating
self-organisation through community
associations on estates and inareas that can act
as a focus for community defence and
resistance.

In past Annual Reports, we have highlighted
the activities and successes of community
agsociations suchasthe Cypress Ethnic Welfare
Association and the West Ham Ethnic Welfare
Association. These associations were created
as a direct response to and consequence of the
failure of statutory agencies to respond
effectively to racial harassment, provide
adequate help and support and take decisive
action against the perpetrators. NMP has
worked closely with these associations and
can say, without hesitation, that there have
been noticeable decreasesin
racial harassment in those |
areas where associations
have flourished. We
applaud the unity and
determination of those
involved in creating a sense |
of security and a network of
mutual support amongst
black residents who are no
longer afraid that they have
to suffer in isolation. This in
itself is an important first
step in the battle against the
racists.

Aﬂé

In 1993, NMP continued to commit
considerable time and energy to the forging of
community associations.

Gwendoline Avenue
Community Association

The Gwendoline Avenue Community
Association highlighted onceagain theresolve
and determination of the black community to
combat racism and challenge those statutory
agencies unableand/or unwilling to deal with
racial harassment.

Gwendoline Avenuein Plaistow was the scene
ofaspate of racist attacks beginning in October
1992. The harassment increased significantly
following the arrival of a white family from
Custom House. Attacks ranged from verbal
abuse, threatened and actual assaults, the
smashing of windows to a horrific incident in
which a seven-year-old child was threatened
and attacked with an axe by a nine-year-old
child. The response of both the council and the
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potlice was disappointing and predictable. The
local housing officers promised tolook into the
matter buttook noaction. The police, however,
did take someaction - they arrested Mr Sahota,
a black resident, for defending himself against
a vicious attack from his white neighbour.
Interestingly, Mr Sahota was arrested by PC
Plunkett who was also implicated inthearrests
of Tony Deane and Colin Imbert (see last year’s
Annual Report). Mr Sahota was charged with
actual bodily harm even though his wife had
called the police for help because her husband
was being assaulted by a known racist.

Following thisincident, local residents realised
that they had to organise and defend
themselves because the police and the council
were apparently not concerned about the
harassment in the area. NMP worked closely
with the residents in order to establish the
Gwendoline Avenue Community Association
(GACA). GACA was determined to bring an
end to the racial harassment in the area.

On 20 May 1993, a public meeting was held at
which GACA was launched. Three main
objectives were agreed upon. Firstly, to
campaign for the dismissal of all charges
brought against Mr Sahota; secondly, to
campaign for the perpetrators to be charged;
and thirdly, to demand and secure the eviction
of the perpetrators. All the residents were
adamant that the racists had to be moved out

ciat
Important Meeting

On 14tk July members of Gwendoline Avenue Commu-
nity Assaciation attended the Council's Housing Committee
demanding action to evict the racists terrorising the area.
Unbelievably, Clir Chaudhary, who is the Chair of the
comumittee, refused to allow residents to be heard. After

some protest, the Council agreed to meet representatives
from GACA the following day. This meeting went ahead
and a number of proposals were made, Before any further
action is taken by GACA, the comumunity needs to decide
the next step forward in the campaign.

Come to the

G.A.C.A meeting on

Thursday 12th August

at One Love, The Uptan Cemtre,
1 Bishop's Avenue. Plaistow E13. 6.30pm,
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of the area. However, prior to the fheeting,
many were afraid of the consequences of
speaking out against the perpetrators.
However, the meeting created a sense of unity
amongst residents as they realised they would
no longer have to suffer in isolation and fear.
Additionally, a number of witnesses felt
confident enough to come forward and provide
statements in connection with theattack on Mr
Sahota.

On 8 July 1993, a delegation of over 50 people
from GACA attended a meeting of the housing
department’s racial harassment panel.
Residents recounted their experiences of
harassment and demanded that the racists be
evicted as a matter of urgency.

On 14 July 1993, over 80 members of GACA
attended a meeting of Newham Council’s
Housing Committeeto demand theimmediate
eviction of the racists. Amazingly, Clir
Chaudray, Chair of the Committee, refused to
allow any of the residents to put forward their
case. Theresidents, who had packed the public
gallery, were outraged by the council’s
contempt for their concerns. As a result of loud
protests from NMP and GACA, the meeting
had to be suspended for 20 minutes, and the
council agreed to meet representatives of
GACA the following day.

The outcome of this determined campaign
was that the CPS agreed to drop the charges
against Mr Sahota and the police charged the
principal perpetrator, Mr Goodall, with actual
bodily harm. Mr Goodall is currently awaiting
trial. Also the council gave way to the relentless
pressure from GACA and NMP and finally
evicted the Goodall family. In short, all three
objectives of the campaign were met.

Currently, NMP is seeking advice about
whether the residents of Gwendoline Avenue,
particularly those who are owner-occupiers,
can seek financial redress from the council for
moving the racists into the grea in the first
place, a precedent setinasimilar cage in Bristol.
Members of GACA havesince offered support
and advice to other black communities in
Newham who are facing problems of racial
harassment.




Second Avenue
Community Association

Inrecent years, Second Avenuein Plaistow has
been the scene of serious racist violence. Most
black families living in the area have suffered
some form of harassment, including violent
assaults. In similar circumstances to those of
Gwendoline Avenue, it was the arrest of a
young man, Mr Kalaam, that finally prompted
the community to take action.

On 18 August 1993, a white resident of Second
Avenue was holding the young son of a black
neighbour and shaking him violently by the
neck. The child was crying out for help. Many
of the black residents witnessed this incident
but did not intervene. The white man in
question was the perpetrator of much of the
harassment in the area, and most of the black
residents were afraid of the consequences of
interfering. Mr Kalaam,
however, refused to watch a
young child being assaulted.
He tried to intervene to
ensure the child’s safety. At
no point did he verbally or
physically threaten the white
man. In fact, it was Mr
Kalaam himself who was
viciously assaulted - he was
beaten on thearms and head
with an iron rod. He fled
into a neighbour’s house for
safety. However, when the
police arrived, they arrested
MrKalaamand later charged
himwithactualbodily harm,
the racist being cited as the
victim. The residents of
Second Avenue were
outraged at the decision to charge Mr Kalaam;
in fact, the incident united the local black
community.

taken against thent.

racist thugs

With the help and support of NMP, a public
meeting was held on 14 September 1993 at
which the Second Avenue Community
Association (SACA) was launched. The
residents recounted horrific incidents of racial
harassment - women told of how they were
verbally abused, pushed and shoved and had
their scarves pulled off their heads by white

ANNUAL REPORT 1993/94

NEWHAM MONITORING PROJECT

[TORI

PUBLIC MEET
AGAINST RACIST ATTACKS

Tuesday 14th Septé:30pm

Curwen Primary School
Atlas Road ,Plaistow E13

In the past few months have witnessed a large namber of racist altacks in and
around Secend Avenue. The attacks haveincluded a number of Asian children
being beaten with weapons, The mother of ane family was berselfbeaten with
a hockey stick in broad daylight and youngsters have been areested by the
palice for defeading themselves against these altacks.

In most of the dezens of attacks that have taken place, the attackers are known, NM P
Both the police and the council have been informed and yet no action has been

We will not tolerale (his situation any longer. As a result of these attacks we
have called a public meeting (o inform the whele community and te demand
an end to this terrible situation. Unless we snite as 2 community not enly will
us but also our children continue to suffer violence at the hands of mindless,

children, some no more than eight-years-old.
They explained that when they went to
complain to the parents of the children, they
were told to ‘fuck off back to your own country,
you Pakis” and threatened. One woman told of
how she was assaulted in her own home by a
white neighbour wielding a plank.

Mr Kalaam’s family, in particular, were
subjected to a vicious campaign of racial
harassment. They were terrorised one evening
by a gang of white youths who congregated
outside their house, threatening to attack the
family and burn their house down. A gun was
also pushed through their letter box, and their
lives were threatened. In fact, the Kalaam’s
family were the first family in the borough to
have security cameras installed in an attempt
to ensure their safety.

On another occasion, Mr Kalaam’s mother,
Mrs Ali, and younger
PR brother, Koyes, were
ING assaulted by a white
neighbour with a
hockey stick. Mrs Ali's
arms were bruised, and
their front window was
smashed. The attack
was accompanied by
vitriolic racist abuse.
volunteers
attended the scene
following a call on our
emergency service line.
Police officers also
attended, butitwasonly
after the forceful
intervention of owur
volunteers that the
officersdecided toarrest
the perpetrator. He was later charged with
criminal damage. The residents of Second
Avenue were outraged at this decision, in light
of the fact that Mr Kalaam, who had been
viciously assaulted, was charged with actual
bodily harm whereas a white perpetrator of a
brutal racist attack was only charged with
criminal damage.

On 1 November 1993, SACA held a second
public meeting. It was well-attended with over
20 local families represented. SACA invited

local councillors to attend in order to inform
them about what was happening in the area.
Unfortunately, only two councillors attended,
one of whom left after fifteen minutes. The
residents wereangry thatthecouncil had taken
no action against the racist perpetrators who

were still residing in the street. They described

the fear and intimidation under which they
lived. It was decided that SACA would have to
take its concerns to the council.

On 25 November 1993, over 40 residents of
Second Avenue packed the public gallery ata
full council meeting. SACA were granted
speaking rights at the meeting. Two residents
of Second Avenueand representatives of NMP
told councillors about the harassment in the
area, demanded to know why the council had
done so little to support black residents and
asked what they intended to do. One young
resident of Second Avenue, Mrs A, recounted
horrific incidents of harassmentand described
how, through becoming involved withSACA,
the black residents of the street had regained
theirdignity and were determined to fight. She
called on the council to support SACA, evict
theracist perpetrators and thereby send a clear
message to all racists that racial harassment
wotld not be tolerated in Newham. SACA
also demanded that the council write to the
CPS and urge them to drop all charges against
Mr Kalaam. Finally, they called on the council
to look into the policing of the area because
many residents were very concerned, even
disturbed, by the way in which the police
responded to  their
complaints of racial
harassment.

In relation to Mr Kalaam’s
case, the council confirmed
orally and in writing that
they would make a ‘formal
representation to the
Metropolitan police asking
that the handling of the case
beinvestigated’ and request 3
the CPS to review ‘the I
charges which have been
brought.” They also
promised to seek
‘reassurances about police
action to protect families in
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the area.” To date, we have reeeived no
information to suggest that the council has
fulfilled even one of these commitments. We
have also received no explanation from the
council toclarify their inaction, despitea written
request for such clarification.

Fortunately, Mr Kalaam was not s;olely
dependent upon the council. Following a long
anddetermined campaign by SACA and NMP,
the CPS dropped all charges against Mr
Kalaam. The white neighbour who attacked
Mrs Ali was convicted of criminal damage,
leaving the way clear for possession
proceedingstobecommenced against theracist
perpetrators. SACA will continue to apply
pressure to secure the eviction of the racists.

Conclusion

The residents of Gwendoline Avenue and
Second Avenue decided to organise for
themselves against the racists because they
were disillusioned with the council’s empty
promises. GACA and SACA have exposed the
systematic failure of the housing department
to address the problems of racial harassment
and work effectively with theblack community.
They have also demonstrated what can be
achieved when black people unite and work
together. '

They are living proof of the success of
community self-organisation.

A

Second Avenue Residents join the picke! of Plaistow pc;lice station




The primary routes to making a legal chal-
lenge against racial harassment are provided
by Newham council’s legal department and
the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS), via the
police. Both the council and the CPS have
consistently failed to provide families, who
have often bravely fought back against racists,
with the legal weapons they need to overcome
racial harassment. To better illustrate this, we
will use two cases highlighted in previous
reports to show the long tortuous process
victims are put through, because of the lack of
any effectiveaction by both the counciland the
CPS.

Critigue of the council's
legal department

Before going on to demonstrate the institu-
tional failures of the various agencies to pro-
tect the families and individuals in the cases
outlined above, we would like first to provide
some background information on the machi-
nations of Newham council’s legal department.

The legal department, which obtains all of its
referrals from the housing department, is re-
sponsible for making legal challenges on be-
half of the victims of racial harassment. In
1992, the housing department of Newham
council issued a document entitled ‘A legal
guide for victims of racial harassment’, outlin-
ing thelegal options available foractionagainst
racists. According to this document, the op-
tions available are:

a) a warning letter reminding the tenant of
his/her obligations under the tenancy agree-
ment not to harass their neighbours;

b) if the incident is serious enough, or has been
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on-going over a long period of time, or if the
perpetrator has failed to take notice of the
warning letter, the council may apply for a
court orer to prevent the perpetrator from
further harassment;

¢) If theracists commit a criminal offence, such
as damage to property or an attack on an
individual, and the police refuse to prosecute,
officers from the housing and legal depart-
ments may encourage them to do so. If the
police still fail to take action, the council may
prosecute if, that is, the victim is willing to
attend court. Finally, if the perpetrator is a
council tenant and has caused serious inci-
dents of harassment, or minor incidents over a
long period of time, the council can apply to
the court for an order to evict the racists from
their home.

The reality, as is so often the case with council
procedures, differs sharply from this. Indeed,
procedures often seem to break down after the
issue of a warning letter. At this point it
appears that councillors and senior council
officers in both key departments are either
reluctant or actively hostile to further legal

action, particularly if thiscould lead to evic-
tion. Despite parading as the champion of the
policy to evict perpetrators of racial harass-
ment, (Newham was the first council to do so
back in 1984 with the McDonnell family), the
council appearsto be terrified of a ‘backlash” as
well as preoccupied by the cost and adminis-
trative bother.

But the ultimate responsibility for the legal
side, however, rests with the legal department,
with its full time staff of lawyers. Once a case
is referred to this department, it is its respon-
sibility to deal withit. It was the all too frequent

examples of incompetence of this department
and the bungling of cases, that prompted a
£10,000 review of the department, carried out
by Duncan Forbes, the author of the Legal
Action Group's report on ‘Legal remedies to
racial harassment’, and a highly-respected au-
thority on such matters. Though the report’s
conclusions were primarily administrative, a
number of telling points were raised about the
competence of the officers and, crucially, the
degree of commitment that the council as a
wholehasto the policy ofevictions. Anexample
of the council’s reluctance to follow throughits
policy is the fact that the majority of evictions
for racial harassment are actually carried out
on the grounds of ‘rent arrears’. This does
indeed allow for a swift eviction, but fails to
address the fact that to evict for racial harass-
ment is also to provide a signal to other per-
petrators of the council’s determination to take
action against racists.

The ‘Forbes Report’ considered the facts in 40
racial harassment case-files provided by the
legaldepartmentand 60 case-files provided by
thedistrict housing offices, together with other
documents supplied by both departments,
including papers on policy and procedure,
guidelines to staff, standard instructions and
checklists, tenancy agreements, right to buy
documentation and the council’s list of del-
egated decision-making, Newham Monitoring
Project also provided information and was
interviewed by Duncan Forbes.

The report essentially tackles issues of open-
ness and bureaucracy. Several key ways were
pointed out for improving the system. In
Forbes’ opinion, more witnesses need to be
persuaded to give evidence. This could be
done by providing extra support and protec-
tion, building on ‘support mechanisms’ for
victims, by looking in particular at the experi-
ences of local support groups in the voluntary
sector. Forbes also held that victims should
regularly be provided with information about
the progress of their case, and that this would
in turn increase the victim’s confidence in the
council’s ability to deal with their case.

Field Esiate

The reality of the legal department’s handling
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of evictions is best illustrated by the gase of the
C family and AP. As we reported in the 1992/
93 Annual Report, the C family and AP both
live on the Field Estate, Forest Gate where they
had been suffering harassment from two sepa-
rate groups of racists: the] family from Fowler
Road, and Paul Sawyer Brown and his partner =
Denise Williams from Field Point, Station Road.
In this case, NMP demanded action against
both the ] family and Sawyer Brown. The
council decided that action could be taken
against Sawyer Brown due to the attack on the
families. But when action was taken by the
legal department, it was to seek the reposses- |
sion of Brown'’s council home on the grounds
that Denise Williams, Sawyer Brown’s partner,
was in fact in rent arrears. What is more sur-
prising is that, despite the wealth of evidence
accumulated against Sawyer Brown and his
partner to prove their racial harassment, (in-
cluding numerous incidents to which the po-
lice were called and the testimony of the estate
caretaker and other witnesses), the legal de-
partment cited only one incident - a shout by
Sawyer Brown of ‘you Paki cunt’ - on its Par-
ticulars of Claim. The fact that Sawyer Brown
was imprisoned for his attacks and arrested
again only six weeks after his release was
totallyignored. Sawyer Brown’s racist rantings
from the dock and his record of attacks on the
estate were, according.to officers from the
legal department, never passed onto them by
the housing department. Housing department
staff, on the other hand, are adamant that they
did inform the relevant legal officer.

In the middle of this argument are the C fam-
ily, left to reflect on why they agreed to be
witnesses in the council’s action and whether
it was all worthwhile. In practice, it seems that
rather than adequate support being provided
for victims by the council, it is the council who
needs the support of the victims.

The fact that such a clear case of racial harass-
ment was pursued so negligently by the coun-
cil is remarkable - but what is even more re-
markable is the way the legal department
has gone about trying to avoid résponsibility
for its actions, or rather lack of action. Ac-
cording to the legal department, it was only
when a NMP worker, present on both occa-
sions Sawyer Brown was arrested, was called
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in by the legal department two weeks before tively racially harassing black people for quite
the actual eviction hearing, that Sawyer sometime. In March 1989, for instance, ST was
Brown’s previous racist history was revealed viciously assaulted by five people, including
to them. Yet thisargument does notaltogether E], the daughter in question. Following pres-
ring trize. For how can the department profess sure from NMP, the perpetrators, including
to be totally ignorant of the race element when EJ, werecharged withserious offences. Incourt,
on its case file, it had cited a clear incident of however, the CPS reduced the charges, and ST
racial abuse. Why hadthe department not, at was persuaded to agree to her attackers being
this early stage, sought further information on ‘bound over to keep the peace.' No action was
the perpetrators they were evicting? It seems taken against the | family by either the coun-
the legal department’s response to these criti- cil’s housing or legal departments.

cisms was simply to lay blame at the door of ‘ o
thehousing department for not providing them In May 1990, the J family wereagainimplicated

with the further information they required. in the harassment of black tenants. In this case,
The legal department must have known that Mr B was threatened and intimidated by_a man
calling someone a ‘Paki cunt’ was not grounds who was a friend of the }'s and was VlSltHfg
enough for an eviction - it was their responsi- them. Again, noaction was taken by the council.
bility to investigate further. Andifthehousing

departmentdid not provide the necessary back- By 1992, both AP and the C family were fre-
up information, the legal department should quently complaining of abuse and harassment

from E] and other members of the ] family. On

have pulled them up for not doing so.
' one occasion in July 1992, EJ burst into Mr C’s

Tt is precisely such attempts to shift the blame flat screaming racial abuse and attempted to
and to cover up g}armg mistakes that further strike himin full view of the then localhousmg
calls into question the council’s commitment officer for the area. Later that same month, EJ
to its eviction procedures. For many months pushed and kicked Mr and Mrs C who
now, the families have been living in close promplly reported the matter to the police.
proximity to the racists, daily facing the threat When the police interviewed EJ, she claimed
that the harassment n’ught begin anew. DBut that Mr C had sexually assaulted her when his
now they face many more anxious months of wife and three young daughters, as well as a
unnecessary delay as the council resubmits its number of neighbours, had been present. De-
Particulars of Claim to the county court, spite a total lack of proof, Mr C was then
amended in order to fully address the racial interviewed by the police under caution. Once
harassment issue. It is a delay that was again NORIS's response to this case was to
avoidable and would never have occurred if placate the situation by advising Mr C against
the legal department had carried out proper taking any further action and refusing to act
investigations in the first place. against EJ. :

On the night that Sawyer Brown was eventu-

A history of inaction
i ally arrested, members of the ] family ran into

The C family and AP, as previously men- the street screaming racial abuse at a NMP
tioned, werealso being harassed by the ] family worker and the C family. As recently as Octo-
from Fowler Road and, if anything, the har- ber 1993, we reported to the council the fact
assment instigated by this family outstrips that EJ had once again been ‘bound over to
that of Sawyer Brown. Yet the council has keep the peace’, this time following persistent
taken no action whatsoever, allegedly because harassment of a Scottish family on Fowler
the main perpetratorin this case is the teenage Road. The police again intervened urging the
daughter of the ] family. Scottish family not to pursue charges.

NMP have had dealings with this particular Over a number of years, therefore, NMP has
racist family since 1987, and even then, we had consistently catalogued attacks carried out by
been informed that this family had been ac- the J family and demanded action from the

council. Yet it was only in December 1993 that
acouncil officer first acknowledged that ‘there
is a history of alleged involvement in racial
harassment, regarding the | family, any evi-
denceinvolvestheteenagedaughter’. The view
of the council remains that the ‘best prospects
of action are dependent upon the outcome of
criminal proceedings pending against the
daughter’. Theseare precisely the proceedings
inwhichthe policeurged the victims to consent
to a bindover.

As far as NMP’s demand for an eviction is
concerned, the officer states that ‘historically
this course of action is unsuccessful’. The only
solution to the problem they offer is to liaise
with the police. It seems clear, therefore, that
the families are destined to suffer many more
years of harassmentat the hands of the ] family.

This case illustrates precisely the problems
many victims of harassment suffer in the face
of the indifference and in some instances the
outright hostility of the council and the police.
The] family will continue to harass, attack and
intimidate their neighbours because no effec-
tive action has ever been taken agsainst them.
Inthis context, the council’s soothing platitudes
about ‘action against racists’ or ‘stamping out
racial harassmrent’ isno more than hypocritical
nonsense.

Furthermore, this case also exposes the futility
of most of the council’s race structures which
are supposed to be there in order to stop such
situationsarising. Rather than supporting the
community and providing practical assistance
to the victims of harassment, many race offic-
ers seem either preoccupied with internal
council politics or, alternatively, are cowed
into silence. Action is necessary: the legal de-
partment must be confronted, its practises
fundamentally changed and it’s priorities
brought intoline with those of the community.
Racists who areresponsible for the continuous
harassment of black families in their area must
have action taken against them immediatly if
confidence in the council is to be restored.

Critique of the CPS

Over the past few years, NMP has consistently
criticised the CPS for its conduct of racial
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harassment cases, both in terms of ifs formal
policy as well as its practical application. Our
initial critique of the CPS was set out in the
1987 Annual Report, which was written at the
time of the formation of the CPS.

Our concerns in relation to the CPS revolve -

£
%

around three main issues:

B Failure to take cases of racial harassment
seriously and accept a racial motive, Even
when outside intervention urging that the ra-
cial motive to an attack should be acknowl-
edged is accepted by the CFS, there appears to
be a failure to argue this in the courts with any
conviction. Prosecutors often describe racist
attacks and the attempts by victims to defend
themselves as ‘playground squabbles’, or
‘neighbourhood disputes’, or more commonly .
as ‘six of one and half a dozen of the other’.

An example of this playing down of the racial
motive and of incredible CPS incompetence is
provided by the case of the Pirt brothers, re-
sponsible for the attack on Mr S. As we re-
ported in 1991/92, the S family endured
longterm racial harassment which include
bricks thrown througha window of their home.
The S family said the perpetrators were two
white men who lived next door but one.

On 4 March 1992, Mr S's young cildren were
playing in the garden when two men, accom-
panied by two friends, made taunts and threw
beer cans at the children. When Mr S ran into
the garden, before he could even speak, one of
the men had sprayed ammonia into his eyes.
The other man then proceeded to beat him
senseless. Mr S spent a week in hospital recov-
ering. His sight in one eye had been irrepara-
bly damaged.

Following NMP’s intervention the S family
were moved for their own safety into bed and
breakfastaccommodation where thesix of them
remained for ten weeks cramped into two
small rooms. NORIS, having been informed of
the case by NMP, arrested Mr 5's,two neigh-
bours and charged them with GBH.

A few weeks after the attack, the police raided
the premises of the Pirt brothers, arresting
them for grievous bodily harm-and other of-




fences. During the raid, the police confiscated
a bottle of industrial ammonia which had been
hidden under the floor-boards in the kitchen.

As a consequence of CPS incompetence, three
juries were dismissed before the case was even
tried. Finally in August 1993, volunteers from
NMP werein court to see thealleged instigator
of the attack, Trevor Pirt, acquitted, and Kevin
Pirt, who has an extensive criminal record,
acquitted of the charge of administering nox-
ious substances which caused grievous bodily
harm but convicted of actual bodily harm. The
CPS had had fifteen months in which to pre-
pare thecase. Inthis period, they had indicated
an acceptance of the racial dimension of the
case, but the failure to argue this effectively in
court was very muchinkeeping with the whole
way in which the CPS had handled all aspects
of the case. Interestingly enough, even Judge
Stable was moved to criticise the conduct of
the CPS inthis case.

Inresponse to acomplaint from NMP, the CPS
stated that ‘full medical evidence of the inju-
ries in this case was never produced’ by the
police because ‘sufficient pressure was not
brought to bear on police to either obtain the
evidence or present fullinformation as to why
it was not available’. They went ontoacknowl-
edge a number of other difficulties in the
preparation of the case and that ‘the course of
the trial does little credit to the process of
criminal justice’. Furthermore, they concluded
that lessons must belearnt from this to prevent
such matters arising again. Unfortunately, in
NMP’s experience, lessons are notbeing learnt.
This becomes particularly evident when the
treatment of racial harassment cases is con-
trasted to the CPS’s eagerness to prosecute
victims of racial harassment who have de-
fended themselves. And this constitutes our
second major criticism of the CP5.

@ The CPS’s conduct in relation to the pros-
ecution of victims of racial violence who
themselves have been arrested and charged.
Over the years, the CPS has appeared unduly
eager to proceed with prosecutions of racial
harassment victims. Many examples of such
prosecutions have been documented both in
this Annual Report and in past Annual Re-
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ports. Notable examples include:

» Mr Sahota (see chapter 4)

* Mr Kalaam (see chapter 4)

» Mr Altaf (see chapter3, 1990 Annual Report)
* Mr Govindan (see chapter 6, 1990 Annual
Report)

e Mr Calvert (see chapter 6, 1991/92 Annual
Report)

e Mrs S (seechapter53, 1992 /93 Annual Report)

CPScomplicity withracial harassment remains
an issue of great concern to the black commu-
nity.

B The general failure of the CPS to consult
victims of attacks. There are many examples
of the CPSignoring the victims’ stated wishes
in relation to the conduct of a case. In many
instances, the victims are not even spoken to
by the CPS prior to trial. This failure to consult
alsorelates tothecharges preferred against the

A JUDGE has criticised the Crown Prosecu- charge of applxing a corrosive fluid with
tion Service's handling of a case involving  intent to cause grievous badily harm.
an artack oii an Asian man. His brether Trever Pirt, 22, also of Howards

Snaresbrook Crows Court heard that chef — Road, was acquitied of assault.

Pritpal Singh, 36, was sprayed with a Both denied involvement in the attack, and
corrosive fluid in Howards Road, blamed the other man — not named in
Plaistow, on March 4 Jast year, court — for spraying Mr Singh.

He was then struck as he reeled in pein, it was Charges against the thirdé man were dropped
claimed. His face was severely burned,  during an earlier hearing at Newham
and his right eye was damaged. Magistrates’ Court, when the Crown

Mr Singh's sight was probably saved by  Prosecution Service decided to offer me
Plaistow Pc Alan Moore, who washed the evidence against him.
injured man's eyes immediately after the At Snaresbrook, Judge Owen Stable said:
incident. ““That was & very injudicious decision. It

Three men were allegedly involved in the  left the case wide open. 1am going to make
attack, bt only twa came to trial. a formal complaint about the way the CPS

The jury cenvicted Howards Road resident  have handled the case. As far as 1 am
Kevin Pirt, 25, of assault causing actual concerned, they threw it away.”
badily harm. Kevin Pirt was remanded in custody until

But they cleared him of the more sericus August 27, when he will be sentenced.

Newham Recorder - 18 August 1993

perpetrators. Take the case of the C family in
Forest Gate harassed by Paul Sawyer Brown.

In July 1993, Sawyer Brown appeared in court
for an attack on the C family. When Mr and
Mrs Carrived at court to give testimony, the y
were informed by a police officer that the
charges against Sawyer Brown had been re-
duced from threatening behaviour to disor-
derly conduct, thus ensuring that no custodial

24

sentence could be imposed. The prosecutor
then approached the family and asked them
whether they would be contentshould the CPS
support an application for the two defendants
to be bound over.The C family were so dis-
gusted by the reduction of the charges that
they did not bother objecting. Subsequently,
Sawyer Brown was bound over.

In a letter to NMP after the trial, the CPS
addressed the reasons why the prosecutor had
refused to answer inquiries as to why the
charges had been reduced. The CPS said that
without “wishing to be discourteous’, the
prosecutor had “felt that that was not the right
time or place to be explaining the reasoning
behind thedecision’. Inasense, thisis perfectly
true. The CPS should have discussed the
charging of Sawyer-Brown with the victims
well before the day of the trial, but of course
this did not happen. In addition, the CPS in its
letter went on to say that the prosecutor be-
lieved relations between the defendants and
the C family had in any event approached
what could be described as normal. Further-
more, he had gained the definite impression
{via the interpretor) that the family were more
than content with the course of action proposed
and had there been any doubt about this he
would have proceeded to trial, ‘bearing in
mind the sensitivity of the case’. However,
what the CPS had not taken into account is the
fact that victims are unwilling to express
‘doubts” when it means going through the
stress of a trial involving charges which bear
absolutely no relation to the suffering they
have experienced.

The case of Panchadcharam Sahitharan, who
was murdered in a racist attack in Manor Park
at the end of December 1991, and the subse-
quent trial of Gary Hoskin for his murder, is
also revealing of the CPS’s attitude. Here, the
CPS failed to keep in contact with the family,
and to prepare the case against Hoskin prop-
erly. Indeed, the charges against another man
arrested were dropped at the committal stage,
with the CPS conceding there was no case
against him and feebly acquiescing to the de-
fence. NMP’s critique of the CPS’s handling of
this case is detailed in chapter 9 of the 1991/92
Annual Report.

Briefly, NMP's recommendations age as fol-
lows:

1) Inany case where the victims specify a racial
motive the CPS must, in their instructions to
prosecution barristers, specify that the attack
was racial. The prosecution case should be |
opened on that basis, making it abundantly
clear to the jury, therefore, that this was a case
of racial violence.

2) In light of the widespread evidence of rac-
ism within the police force, the CPS should
treat with suspicion the arrest of any black
person who appears to have been the victim of
a racist attack and subsequently faces charges
arising from actions carried out in self-defence.

3}1tis necessary to initiate some formof formal
proceduretoinvestigate thereasons why some
cases are so shamefully mishandled. Often the
police blame the CPS or vice versa. Ironically,
many competent defence solicitors are more
successful than the CPSat gaining information
from the police.

4) It is important that CPS solicitors keep in
regular touch with victims and their repre-
sentatives throughout the preparation of the
case rather than as often happens ignoring
their wishes or refusing to even meet with
them. *

5) It is crucial that the CPS formally acknowl-
edgestheseverity of racial violenceand accepts
that such attacks cause particular concern
throughout the communty.

Racial Harassment Bill

1993 has seen a massive increase in interest not
just in racial vielence but in the possibility of
legislation to remedy the situation. From all
quarters, politicians have attempted toride the
anti-racist bandwagon, and there have been
numerous calls from politicians and ‘national
anti racist groups’, who have little conception
of the situation on the grouncf, forsuch legisla-
tion. Indeed, the one thing tho&e calling for
legislation havein common is anignorance of
the problems faced by grassroots organisa-
tions in tackling racial harassment.

"




The rising tide of racist attacks in this country
does indeed demand action now - but what is
not needed are quick fixes solutions proposed
by politicians who want to be seen to be doing
something. Many ‘experts on race’ argue that,
with the situation becoming so desperate, leg-
islation in parliament is the only way that the
racist tide can be turned. We, as community
organisations working day-to-day in support
of black people attacked by racists, take the
view that a Racial Harassment Bill is unneces-
sary and indeed that campaigning for it is a
diversion. We do so for the following reasons:

B Firstly, we believe that under current legis-
lation, in particular the Police and Criminal
HEvidence Actand the PublicOrder Act, thereis
ample provision for the police to arrest and
prosecute perpetrators of racial harassment
and intimidation. The problem is that the po-
lice do not use the powers that they already
have. Time and time again, our experience has
been that the police choose to ignore the racial
dimension in harassment cases, categorising
incidentsinstead as ‘neighbourhood disputes’,
or arresting the victims rather than the racists.
Thisislinked to the fact that, across the country,
harassment perpetrated by the police is one of
the most pressing problems facing black
communities. Nothing in all the legislation
proposed does anything to address this prob-
lem.

B Secondly, we believe that the Racial Harass-
ment Bill lets the police off the hook. What it
would inevitably result in is the creation of
more specialist squads to which all race cases
will be referred. For example, in Newham, we
have the Newham Organised Racial Incidents
Squad (NORIS) which was set up supposedly
to deal with the large number of racial hat-
assment cases in the borough, but in reality, is
little more than a sophisticated public rela-
tions exercise. The everyday experience in
Newham is that when cases are accepted as
‘racial’, they are passed on to NORIS and are
largely ignored by officers on the streets, which
is little comfort to a family attacked every night
who have to wait hours for the police to help
them. For this reason alone, we would argue
against ghettoising racistattacks into high pro-
file squads.
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# Thirdly, as our critique of the CPS outlined
above indicates, confidence in the CPS’s abil-
ity to prosecute racial harassment cases is now
extremely low. In case after case, the CPS has
been criticised for its lacklustre performance,
its arrogant attitude in relation to campaigns
launched by families, and its frequent refusal
to put forward the racial motive.

B Finally, we believe that a strategy centred
solely on parliament ignores the history of
grassroots anti-racist struggles. The experi-
ence of the 1980s must surely show us that
institutional anti-racism can never be a substi-
tute for black people organising themselves to
fight racist violence. While well-intentioned
councils were organising conferences on ‘how
bad racism is’, grassroots black community
groups were doing the practical work at the
cutting edge of the anti-racist struggle: sup-
porting our people under attack, organising
campaigns, putting pressure on the police to
arrest racists. The rising level of racial harass-
ment in this country shows that the paternalis-
tic politics of anti-racism from above has failed.

Our experience, as a community, of police
harassment shows that no matter how worthy
legislation on racial harassment is, we cannot
depend on the police to defend us and putand
end to racist attacks. Ultimately, we can only
force change through our own actions, with
the support and assistance of the wider anti-
racist movement.

In 1993, NMP dealt with 175 cases of police
harassment. Below, we document this
continuing violence and malpracticeunleashed
by the police against the black community. In
particular, we highlight notable trends and
cases and the often tragic effects of oppressive
policing on the lives of black people trying to
go about their daily business.

Harassment of black women

In last year’s Annual Report, we highlighted
the case of Gill Smith, a young black woman
who was viciously attacked and criminalised
by the police, and the subsequent campaign
launched by NMP to get the charges dropped.
The Justice for Gill Smith Campaign was
successful, and the case against Gill was
dismissed. Gill is in the process of suing the
police for damages.

Below we report on the increasing violence
thatblack womenhavesuffered at the hands of
the police. Two important points are painfully
Hlustrated by the cases discussed:

1. It is not only black men who fall foul of racist

policing.

2. Female officers are usually as brutal as their
male colleagues, thus belying the argument
that an increase in the number of black or
female officers will reduce the level of police
harassment.

B On 18 August 1993, YB’s 11-year-old child
had a playground dispute with a white child
who later called her mother. Both parentshad a
heated argument which resulted in the police
being called by the white woman who alleged
that YB had threatened her. YBwas taken to the
police station and released on bail, pending
further investigation. At the time, she was five
months pregnant!

The next day, officers arrived at her flat and
asked her to accompany them to the police
station. YB explained that sheneeded to waitfor
her sister who had gone downstairs to come
back up and baby-sit her two children. But the
officers from Leyton police station would not
listen and became abusive, one of them stating
that ‘this fucking bitch is taking too much time.
YB was then set upon by the officers. Her
younger child was screaming as he watched his
pregnantmother being dragged outof the house.

YB began to scream to get the attention of other




residents. When her neighbours attempted to
intervene, pleading with the officers to treat her
carefully because of her condition, they were
threatened with arrest for obstruction if they
did not clear off. YB was dragged virtually
naked along the corridor into a smelly lift.
Because her legs were held apart by the officers,
her leggings had rolled down. Her t-shirt was
tornand her whole body wasexposed. The sight
of her swollen and uncovered stomach
compelled even more people to plead with the
officers - this too proved in vain.

YB appealed to a woman police officer for help,
as one woman to another, but got the shock of
her life when the WPC told her to ‘shut up, you
patheticpiece of shit.” Whensheasked theofficers
what she had done to deserve such treatment,
she was told ‘you bastards think you can go
round hitting white people and get away with
it

In the police van, YB was subjected to even more
racial slurs. Oneof the officers putaleg over her
stomach, saying ‘one less of the bastards.” The
WPCinformed her male colleagues that “when
Itouch them, they make me fell dirty.” AtLeyton
police station, YB was charged and kept in
custody overnight, where she was unable to
sleep.

During the night, a lay visitor doing her rounds
was s0 shocked at the state in which she found
YB that she demanded that YBbereleased asshe
was in no condition to be detained. Her efforts
werein vain. After appearing in court the next
morning, YBwasrushed to thematernity unitof
Whipps Cross hospital, where she was admitted
for severe abdominal pain and put under
observation fora weekinordertoenabledoctors
to monitor the foetus. According to YB, ‘they
could have killed my baby and wouldn’t have
cared less.’

B NH was also pregnant when she was severely
beaten by police officers on Cann Hall Road,
E11. The police had set up a cordon in the area,
and NH was concerned as she thought thatone
of her friends might be involved. She asked the
potice inspector who was in charge if she could
go through to check whether it was her friend
who was involved. He gave his permission but
as NH proceeded, she was grabbed by two
officers who forcefully pushed her out of the
way.

INH tried to explain to them that she had been
given permission by the inspector. She was
again forcefully pushed out of the way. This

NEWHAM MONITORING PROJECT

time, she lost her balance and clung onto the
officer’s shirt to prevent her from falling over.
Realising that the situation was rapidly getting
out of hand, she told the officers that she was
pregnant and asked them to be careful how they
treated her. Her pleas fell on deaf ears, and she
was dragged along the floor by her legs to a

police van. Her hands were twisted behind her
back as one officer kneed her in the back, saying
he hoped her baby was dead. NH was
handcuffed, thrown into the van and taken to
Leyton police station where she was charged
with assaulting a police officer, obstructing a
police officer and criminal damage to a police
uniform.

NMPisalarmed atthe increase in police attacks
onpregnantblack women. Wealso note thatin
both the twocases mentioned above, the officers
were from Leyton police station. NMPis closely
monitoring the activities of officers from this

station in light of the callous attacks on YB and
NH.

B |B is a refugee who lives with her 13-year-old
son RB on an estate in Bow. For the past three
years, RB has been continuously racially
harassed by local white children. Due to police
indifference, she decided to keep her sonindoors
as much as possible so as to avoid the racists.
Indeed, on one occasion, the police had the
nerve toadvise her that‘if they (the perpetrators)
knock on your door again, don't open it and
don’t answer them.’

The attacks became worse, and local white
youths began waiting on the staircase for RB.
On 18 December 1993, having waited in vain for
RB to appear, the gang of youths moved from
their usual waiting area on the stairs to RB’s
frontdoor, and whilst calling out for RB to come
out and fight, they kicked and banged on the
door. JB asked her son to ignore the taunts.

When one of the youths poured water through
the letter box, RB reacted by throwing water at
one of the youths - she promptly went to get her

Limehouse police station arrived at JB’s flatand
arrested her for allegedly throwing water on the
girland beating up the mother who they claimed
was now seripusly ill. JB protested that she, in
fact, was the victim and not vice versa. On the
way out, one officer picked up a stick from
under the staircase and said it was evidence of
the weapon used in the assault.

At the police station, ]B asked that her solicitor
be contacted but was told that this was
impossible as it was a public holiday. She then
asked for her son to be contacted bui was
threatened that if she did not behave, he would
be taken into care. She was taken to a room in
order to be strip-searched by a WPCand told to
take off her clothes. When ]JB asked the WPC
why she was wearing gloves, the WPC replied
‘in case of AIDS.”

Because of her continuous questions as to the
whereabouts of her son, the WPC became
irritated and warned her that ‘you won't see
your child again, we are taking him into care.’
When she protested, she was surrounded by a
number of officers who assisted the WPC in
dragging ]B to a cell with her blouse over her
head. The officers informed her that she was
being ‘difficult’ and that they had their own
ways of dealing with difficult people.

In the cell, JB, who suffers from high blood
pressure, began to gasp for air. She staggered to
the cell door to call for help but was told to ‘stop
pretending.” By this time, she could not speak,
and the officer realised that something was
wrong. Heran to get other officers - when they
returned, JB was lying on the cell floor. They
began to ask her whether she had had a heart
attack before, whether she had amental problem
or whether she was on drugs. The officers
panicked when they noticed that her condition
was deteriorating and eventually called an
ambulance. According to JB, 1 felt as if they
were killing me, butI waseven more scared that
they would take my son away into care.” JB was
never charged with any offence.

mother. The mother banged onJB’sdoor, telling
her to come out. When JB came out, she was
accused of throwing water on the girl and was
slapped by the girl's mother. JB reacted by
pushing the woman who shouted toher husband
to call the police. Both families were told by the
police to keep away from each other. There
were no further incidents as JB kept her son
indoors throughout the Christmas period.

On 28 December 1993, police officers from

Putting black children in care at the slightest
excuseand onthe basis of fabricated allegations
is one of the many ways that statutory agencies
collude with each other in destroying black
families. NMP will be assisting JB in her
determined effort to seek redress.

Criminalisation of black children

The criminalisation of black children is a

standing issue of concern within,the black
community. In the past year, NMP has dealt
with numerous cases of black children being
victimised and criminalised by the police to
such an extent that thechildrenareleft terrified
of the police and deeply distrustful of the
system as a whole.
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B CLisa 13-year-old who lives with his mother
on the Windsor Park Estate in Beckton. On 14
June 1993, CL had a dispute with his mother
who called the police and informed them that
there was a ‘berserk male” in the house. No
attempt was made by the police to ascertain full
details of the situation. Within minutes, police
vansand cars had swamped the area with battle-
ready shield-carrying officers from the
Territorial Support Group (TSG). There were
about 30 police officers present on the premises
and like any other child, CL was petrified at the
sight of so many police vehicles and officers.
According to him, ‘T looked outside and saw
loads and loads of police cars and vans and
officers with shields who looked as if they were
armed. | was really frightened. I was running
around my bedroom and did not know what to
do. I heard the police coming up the stairs and
I barricaded myself in the bedroom. [ could still
hear the sirens and the armed police and at the
end [ was trying to get up to the loftaway from
them. I thought that they were going to take me
away. [ had never been in trouble before and 1
wasreally frightened. They were coming inand
they were really big men. [ was up in the loft
frightened and I could hear loud crashes.”

The loud crashes were of the police breaking
down CL’s bedroom door. The police then
dragged CL outof theloft. He was hitin the face
and on the head with a truncheon whilst being
kicked on the ground by officers who were
shouting racist abuse. In the course of their
attack on CL, officers damaged his bed and
wrecked his bedroom. The same iron bar used
to break down his bedroom door wasused to hit
his legs.

On the way to Plaistow police station, CL was
called a ‘black nigger” and told ‘you will be dead
by the time you are 20.” Atthe station, an officer
warned him: ‘If I ever catch you in here again, |
will tear your balls off’ whilst another officer
stated: ‘If you were three years8lder, you would
beinacarrier.’CL was then charged with assault
and criminal damage.

NMP was contacted by the Ngwham Consortum
for Youth who provided bail sup
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Wewrote to the Chief Superintendent at Plaistow
police station to protest about the brutalisation
of CL by his officers and express our disgust at
the criminalisation of a child who had himself
been a victim of harassment by the police. We
demanded that all charges be dropped and that
the officers in question be held accountable for
the violent force used on CIL thatnight. The CPS
werealso approached and requested to drop the
charges against CL. In their usual reactionary
manner, the CPS refused to drop the charges
because according to the Senior Crown
Prosecutor, ‘Bearing in mind the circumstance
and nature of the offences, [ take the view thatit
is in the public interest to proceed.’

We are at pains to understand how it could
possibly be in the public interest to prosecute
ajuvenile like CL.Clearly, the timeand expense
incurred in prosecuting CL would have been
put to better use if police officers guilty of
acting outside theirauthority and criminalising
innocent people werebrought to justice-sadly,
a most unlikely scenario.

In a combined effort by Newham Consortium
for Youth, CL’s solicitor and NMP, pressure
was brought to bear on the CPS. We are happy
to report that on 6 October 1993, all charges
against CL were withdraw. At the moment,
CLis considering whetherto pursuecivilaction
against the police. NMP will be assisting him
in any way we can.

Brampion Manor Students Under
Attack

Brampton Manor School, E6 - Thursday 4
March 1993:

School had just finished for the day. Most of
the children were on their way home when a
minor scutfle broke out between two black
students which was immediately broken up
by fellow students. Allofasudden,a policecar
arrived and began to question the two pupils.
The others informed the police that there was
no problem and that they were all on their way
home. One of the officers began to threaten the
children whilst another officer called for back-
up assistance.

Within minutes, there were about 20-30 officers
on the streets. The officers were aggressive
and offensive to say the least - they began to
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physically assault some of the pupils and
racially abuse others. What happened on the
day is best told by the children themselves, all
of whom were between 12 & 14-years-old at
the time.

‘T was stopping one boy getting provoked by a police-
woman who was making sarcastic racial remarks and as
Tturned I saw one black boy being violently pushed into
a police van. The black boy's brother wanted to know
why his brother was being arrested but the policeman
also arrested the boy's brother.”

‘Once I saw the vans, I knew someone had to get pulled
up and I was right. 1 saw my cousin being harassed by
a policeman and when I tried fo calm things down, the
policeman started on me as well.’

“Basically the police were harassing us and sizing
themselves up to youths, being abusive, patronizing,
racist and sarcastic. They were dragging up the youths
and pulling and pushing them about.”

‘They tried to push me into the van but I refused, saying
Ididn't do anything. He grabbed my collar and tried to
throw me into the van but I stll wouldn't go in. He
turned me round so I was facing the side of the van and
rammed my head against it. He threw me inside the
doors. I couldn’t resist as I felt dizzy and I was in pain.

I was on the floor of the van and the policeman was
shouting “get up” but I couldn’t as I'felt so dizzy. When
Ldidn't get up, he stood orn my left shin with one foot still
shouting “get up” while applying more and more pres-
sure. I'told him, “I'll do anything you want, just leave
me alone.””

‘Twas talking to R, the owner of the off-license telling him
what was going on with the school children and the police
when someone shouted “your brother's getting nicked.”
L'turned around to see iy brother being forced into the
police van. He wouldn't go in so the policeman grabbed
his head and knocked it on the outside of the police van
and threw him in. Hewas lying down on the floor of the
van, and I saw the policeman stump on my brother's leg.
Sc I ran round to the door of the van as I was really
distressed and frightened for my brother. I shouted at the
officer to leave my brother alone. A policeman grabbed
me and threw me into the van. I was going peacefully
because all I wanted was to be with my brother.”

‘There was no need for all these policemen and women.
They were sarcastic, rude and fed us with verbal abuse.
Some policemen were being racist.”

It was no way near called for to have 20-30 policemen
and women there for a situation of two friends fighting.
The policemen didn't need to get involved for it was
already sorted out before they came.”

‘They wouldn’t answer a simple question we asked,
which was - why have you got so many police vans and
cars for two school children?”

‘From the looks of the so-called back-up, it seems the
whole police squad were there. I was thinking it couldn’t
takeall of them just tosort outalittle fight with two kids.”

‘Thepoliceareaggressive,ignorant andarrogant. Because
they are in authority, they think they have the right to do
anything. I think this was out of order seeing as we are
juveniles.

On the way to Plaistow police station, the
following conversation took place between the
officers and the children:

Officer 1 to MH: “What do you want to be when
you grow up? Malcolm X or Something?’

MH: "Yes, hopefully.

Officer 1: "Don’t be so fucking stupid, Malcolin
X was g thief and so are you.”

Officer 2to AH: ‘Do you thinkyou are Malcolm
XV

AH: “Yeah'

Officer 2: "You fucking kids don't know what
you're doing and this is the future of England.’

After taking statements from the Brampton
Manor pupils, NMP made a formal complaint
to the Chief Superintendentat West Ham police
station about the incident, demanding the
immediate suspegsion of the officers involved
and the instigation of disciplinary proceedings
against them and an inquiry into the arrests.
NMP also demanded thataletter of apology be
sent to the children involved and that the
police refrain from criminalising young people
inordertojustify theiractions. Wesuccessfully
ensured that all charges against the three
children who were charged were dropped.
They now intend suing the police for damages.

Thecase of Brampton Manor clearly illustrates
the endemic racism prevalent amongst
Newham’s police officers. It is indeed a sorry
state of affairs when twelve police vehicles,
some containing officers from the Territorial

Support Group (TSG), are called to deal with
school children. The officers knew perfectly
well that the children did not constitute a
public order threat - yet they treated them like
hooligans. The violent, racist and abusive
behaviour of the officers was nothing less than
cowardly. Such thugs should be thrown outof
the police force-itis morelikely, however, that
they will be promoted.

Home raicls

Policeraids on the homes of black people occur
with ever-increasing frequency and on the
flimsiest of excuses. Invariably, the policeleave
damage and destruction behind them.

& AG is a single father of twins aged 11. Early
one morning in June 1993, he was awakened by
the sound of his front door being kicked down
by police officers who had come to search his
home.

Finding nothing, theofficersbegan to interrogate
AG’s11-year-old twins in their father’s absence.
They later took AG to Forest Gate police station,
callously leaving the twins behind uncared for.
Unknown to AG, the police had seized a letter
from his home with his sister’s address on it.
They immediately headed for her home in
Stratford.

AG’s sister BG returned home from night duty
to find that the police had gained entry to her
flat. There were two police vans and several
more policecarsoutside and a number of officers
inside the flat. On entering her home, she
identified herself and asked what police officers
were doing there. She was told that her address
had been found at her brother’s home and that
they had cometolook for evidence in connection
with charges to be brought against her brother.
BG could not believe her ears when she was told
that the only reason that the police had raided
her home was because they had found her ad-
dress at her brother’s home and not because
they had any evidence linking her to any crimi-
nal offence. BG also found that her front door
had been smashed and her room lock damaged.
Her home was turned upside down with male
officers making sexual jokes dhd innuendoes as
they painstakingly went through h&* underwear
searching for ‘evidence’.

BG immediately gotin touch with NMP to report




this harassment. We protested to the Chief
Superintendent at Forest Gate police station,
condemning the behaviour of his officers as
despicable. We demanded an explanation for
the raid on BG’s home and the immediate pay-
ment of compensation for the damage done to
BG's door and lock.

On 8 September 1993, we received a letter from
the Community Liaison Officer at West Ham
police station, accepting responsibility for the
damage caused by his officers and agreeing to
cover the cost of repairing the damaged items.

B On 20 October 1993, agroup of about 20 plain-
clothes police officers surrounded the home of
the K family in Walthamstow. They began to
bangon the frontdoor and succeeded inbreaking
and entering. Twelve-year-cld NK came to find
outwhat the commotion was aboutand thrown
against the wall, held by the throatand asked to
‘spit out the fucking drugs.’

As NK began to faint, three other officers ran
upstairs and grabbed Mrs K and 14-year-old IK
who was thrown violently against the wall,
resulting in a severe asthma attack. Seeing her
son gasping for air, Mrs K urged the officers to
give him hisinhaler - they ignored her. With the
assistance of a police dog, they rampaged
through the family’s belongings, evensearching
under the floor boards.

To the horror of the K family and despite their
protests, the police dog was made to sniff through
their personal belongings, including the family’s
Koran (which according to Islamic custom, no
animal may touch). The officers eventually left
withoutoffering any apology for theiractions or
informing the K family what exactly they had
been looking for and why. Over the next few
days, IK’s condition got worse, and he had to be
taken to hospital.

The K family rang NMP’s emergency service to
report the harassment. We complained on be-
half of the K family to Inspector Link at Leyton
police station, expressing our outrage at the
police’s freatment of this innocent family. We
urged him to investigate the matter and notify
us of what action, if any, he intended to take
against the officers responsible. We are yet to
receive a reply.

We also contacted the K family’s MP and their
local councillorsand asked them to lend support
to the Ks in their search for redress. One of the
councillors, Cllr Amarjit Devgun of the London
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Borough of Waltham Forest, wrote to Chief
Superintendent Nettleship at Leyton police
station, supporting NMTI's calls for an investi-
gation into the matter. He urged the police to
examine its method of approach when dealing
with such matters and suggested that when
officers are undertaking such tasks, community
relations should be at the forefront of their
considerations.

INMP are appalled at the bull-in-a-china-shop
modus operandi of police officers carrying out
raids on the homes of black people. We note
the refusal of senior officers to examine our
complaints thoroughly and their often careless
and arrogant attitude towards the black
community.

Policing and racist immigration
laws

The problem of police officers enforcing racist
immigrationlaws, suchastherecently-enacted
Asylum & Immigration Appeals Act, impacts
daily on the lives of black people and refugees
through the country. The recent murders of
Joy Gardner and Zairean refugee Omasase

Lumumba by the immigration police and the

prison authorities respectively are chilling
reminders of things to come. NMP strongly
supports the demands of the black community
for public enquiries into both murders and the
prosecution of the guilty officers. Meanwhile,
we wonder where they will strike next?

Itis important to place events in Britain within
a wider context. For there are waves of
deportations currently sweeping across all the
countries of what has come to be known as
‘Fortress Europe.” There is considerable
evidence that the police and the immigration
authorities across Europe are working closely
together, bent on monitoring the black
community down to the last person. The case
of OM below is a typical example.

B [t was around 10 am on Sunday 5 Septemnber
1993. OM, a Nigerian, was preparing to go to
church when he heard the downstairs door of
his shared apartment being pounded on. He
opened the door and was confronted by two
uniformed police officers from Forest Gate po-

lice station and a woman immigration officer. .

The officers demanded to see a Mr B who they

had come to question regarding his immigra-
tion status.

OM informed the officers that he did not know
this person whereupon they proceeded, with-
out explanation, to question him about his own
immigration status. He was asked to produce
identification; however, when he presented his

driving licence, he was fold that this was in--

sufficient proof. He explained that his passport
was with the Nigerian High Commission for
renewal and produced a receipt to that effect.
But the officers insisted that this, too, was in-
sufficient proof. OM was then taken to Forest
Gate police station and detained in custody.

OM continued to protest his innocence, re-
minding the officers that they had not come to
look for him in the first place. Nevertheless, he
was kept in custody for over four hours, during
which he was racially insulted and locked ina
cell. His cousin eventually attended the station,
bringing with him confirmation of OM’s status,
namely that he has indefinite leave to remain in
the UK and a valid work permit. OM was then
released without an apology and with a further
insultby theimmigration officer, who promised
that she would continue to investigate OM's
status - clearly implying that she believed that
he was lying.

OM lodged a complaint at NMP about his un-
warranted harassment and arrest. In a letter'to
Superintendent Solman at Forest Gate police
station, we demanded animmediateexplanation
for the conduct of the two police officers. We
demanded to know: a) why was OM taken into
custody? b) why was his explanation of his
immigration status not accepted? ¢) was it the
usual practice for police officers to arrest ariy
black person at a property if the individual
being sought was not present? (d) what steps
did he intend to take in order to prevent a
repetition of this humiliating episode?

NMP have also lodged a formal complaint with
the Immigration Service Complaints Section at
Lunar House in Croydon about the behaviour
of the immigration officer and have requested
legal advice from the CRE as OM isdetermined
to pursue the matter.

qucssmeni on the sireeils

8 On 12 April 1993, ZG was arrested on the
landing of Roland Court, E16. He was charged
with disorderly conduct, and his old friend Ms
L was charged with obstruction.
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Mr 26 affer his anrest and beating by

Ms L had asked ZG to ‘“talk to” her ten-year-old
son in his capacity as a well-respected local
figure. In the course of talking to him, MsL’sson
] began crying and shouting. Within minutes of
J crying, however, police officers arrived at the
scene in a number of cars and vans. The officers
came up the stairs and via the lift, and as they
approached ZG, ] became silent. Without warn-
ing, the officers grabbed ZG’s arm, twisting it
violently behind his back.

On hearing the commotion outside her flat, Ms
L rushed out to see her friend pinned against a
wall by two officers who were dragging him to
the ground. When she attempted to intercede,
explaining her relationship to ] and ZG, an
officer swore at her. Ms L insisted that ZG was
a friend but she too was arrested and taken
downstairs to a waiting van.

The most serious aspect of this incident, how-
ever, was ZG's treatment at the hands of police
officers. ZG was thrown into the lift under a
shower of blows, repeatedly racially abused
and dragged to a nearby police van. Inside the
van, he was kicked and punched and had his
handcuffs tightened to such an extent that they
bit into his flesh, causing deep cuts.

ZG and Ms L were conveyed to Plaistow police
station. At the station, ZG repeatedly requested
a doctor as did Ms L on his behalf - no doctor
ever arrived. ZG was charged?and despite his
protestations was effectively forced out of the
police station.

Within minutes of arriving back at Ms L's flat,
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ZG collapsed and was transported by ambu-
lance to Newham General Hospital. He remained
in hospital for several days, as a result of head
and neck injuries, and had to wear a neck-brace
on being released. He has since returned to
hospifal for additional treatment.

At Newham Magistrates Court, ZG was con-
victed of assaulting a police officer while Ms L
was acquitted. ZG was, however, acquitted on
appeal at Snaresbrook Crown Court. Sadly, this
was not the end of his nightmare. As a result of
being assaulted by the police, ZG is exhibiting
symptoms of ‘Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder’
and is undergoing treatment.

This case clearly highlights how an ordinary
member of the community canend up living in
virtual terror of the police, particularly if he or
she has been ‘marked down” by officers on the
beat.

Police compiaints -

BIn February 1993, NH was mugged in Queen’s
Market on Green Street, E7. She reported the
incident to the crime desk at Plaistow police
station, where she gave a statement which
included her personal details. Nine days later,
the incident wasreported in the local newspaper,
the Newham Recorder, complete with explicit
personal details, including NH’s name, age,
occupation and address. This information had
only been given to the crime desk at Plaistow
police station - like NH, we could only conclude
that the Newham Recorder had obtained the
information from Plaistow police station.

NH was shocked that the police had breached
confidentiality by putting her, the victim, at the
mercy of her attacker. The article caused severe
embarrassment and distress to NH and her
family, leaving them feeling vulnerable and
exposed as NH's attacker could now easily trace
them to their family home. Indeed, having once
been burgled and threatened with a knife, NH’s
old mother was petrified that the attacker might
strike again.

NMP complained to the police, highlighting the
obvious distress which the unauthorised
disclosure and subsequent publication had
caused to NH. We demanded an immediate
investigation into how details given in
confidence to the police were rmade available to
Newham Recorder.

Whereas we recognise that it is sometimes nec-
essary to distribute a description of the attacker,
we do not see the justification for including full
personal details of the victim in a newspaper
article.

The police notified us that the officer concerned
had been ‘seen and suitably advised’. This did
not, however, satisfy the issues we raised,
namely: a) how did the Newham Recorder ob-
tain the information in this case? b) what
mechanisms does Plaistow police station have
in place for passing on information to the press
and why did they fail in this incident? ¢) what
was the ‘suitableadvice’ given to the officer? (d)
would any formal action be taken against this
officer? The police replied to our queries by
stating that their press officer had made a
‘mistake” and that they did not envisage taking
any formal action against her.

Unfortunately, this was not the first time that
the police had made the ‘mistake’ of disclosing
a victim’s personal details to the Newham
Recorder without authorisation. In our last
Annual Report, we detailed the case of Mr A,
who disturbed a burglar in his home, took
photographs of the burglar and himself,
showing the injuries received from the attack,
and handed them over to the police. Less than
twoweeks aftertheincident, Mr A wasshocked
to find his photograph splashed on the front
page of the Newham Recorder. Like NH, Mr
A’s personal safety was jeopardised by the
cosy relationship which exists between the
Newham Recorder and the local police.

Far from accepting such slap-on-the-hand
discipline by the police, NMP insists on getting
serious answers to proven examples of police
misconduct raised by cases such as this. It is
most disturbing to find victims of crime
exposed in this way by the very people who
are supposed to protect them. The last thing
that victims who have already suffered the
indignity of being attacked need, is to have
their personal details splashed on the pages of
their local newspaper.

NMPF lodged a formal complaint on behalf of
NH. The results were predictable. The Police
Complaints Authority (PCA) accepted that a
mistake had been made yet concluded that an
apology was enough. Needless to say, NH’s

opinion on the matter was never sought. The
local police apparently gave an undertaking to
examine procedures for the release of
information to the media. This is precisely
what had been promised after Mr A’s case last
year.

B On 15 September 1993, 14-year-old GH and

four of his friends from Stepney Green School
were walking along Durham Road, E1 when
they passed two police officers on horseback.
They cracked a joke amongst themselves. One
of the officers, overhearing the joke, turned and
asked GH what he had said. GH informed him
that the conversation was private and did not
concern him.

Apparently taking offence, the officer mounted
the pavement with his horse and approached
GH, telling him that he could not talk to the
police like that. When GH protested, the officer
responded by edging his horse closer as he bent
down to grab GH by his tie and attempt to lift
him up. At this stage, GH was standing on the
pavement with his back against the wall facing
an extremely aggressive officer on horseback
who proceeded to subject him to a tirade of
racist abuse. GH was advised not to ‘fucking
fuck with the police because the next fucking
Paki I see, I'll batter him, now get your black shit
face out of here before I break your fucking nose
(sic)”

NMP was also contacted by two teachers who
witnessed theincidentand submitted statements
to us and the police. We immediately com-
plained on behalf of GH to Superintendent
Shepherd at Leman Street police station, de-
manding that action be taken against the offic-
ers concerned. Qur complaint resulted in an
internal inquiry conducted by the Arca 2 Com-
plaints Unit and later forwarded to the CPS. On
11 January 1994, the Principal Crown Prosecu-
tor, having considered the matter, concluded
that he was not “satisfied that there is sufficient
evidence to provide a realistic prospect of con-
viction” and thathe had, therefore, ‘decided that
criminal proceedings should not be instituted.”

Yet again, the fact that there was plenty of
independent evidence against the police
officers was side-stepped on the spurious
grounds that the CPS could not guarantee a
conviction. We cannot help but contrast this
refusal to prosecute police officers with the
considerable ease with which the CPS is
prepared to prosecute innocent black people
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against whom the police have fabricated
allegations.

The PCA also decided to recommend no formal
disciplinary charges against the officer
concerned. On 18 March 1994, they stated that
despite the fact that the evidence of the two -
teachers and one of GH's friends latgely
corroborated GH’s version of events, there
was a serious problem with the evidence. It
seemsthat the testimony of two other witnesses
(whose identities are being withheld from
NMP) wassufficiently contradictory to prevent
the PCA from taking action. Were it not for
these two witnesses, however, the PCA claimed
that ‘serious consideration would have been
given to formal disciplinary action against the
officer.” GH's complaint was, therefore, rejected
with no prospect of appeal.

B The police complaint made by NMP which
proceeded furthest was that of Mr R. On the
morning of 20 May 1992, Mr R was sleeping at
his home in East Ham when three plain-clothes
officersattached to Islington police station came
to arrest him. When Mr R asked if they had a
warrant, he was told ‘we don’t need one pal.’
Two officers went straight upstairs to Mr R’s
bedroom to search for evidence which, accord-
ing to them, would establish that Mr R had
written a threatening letter, the nature of which
was not disclosed to him.

Mr R was arrested and taken to Islington police
station. He was mitially released on bail pend-
ing further investigation. However, he was
eventually notified thatno further action would
be taken, it having transpired that the arresting
officers did not have lawful cause to arrest him.
The police did not even have the courtesy to
apologise to Mr R.

NMPF made a formal complaint on behalf of Mr
R against the officers involved, especially one
DC Collins. We demanded an immediate in-
vestigation into the incident and an explanation
for the unacceptable behaviour of the officers
who entered Mr R’s home without a warrant
and never provided Mr R with a search record.

The Area 1 Complaints Wnit submitted our
complaint to the CPS. In an asepnishing letter
dated 18 August 1993, Principal Crown Pros-
ecutor, Robert Saunders, explained why crimi-
nal proceedings were not to beinstituted against
DC Collins. He conceded that DC Collins when
arresting Mr R had ‘acted on a minimum of
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information which, had it been investigated
properly beforehand, should have given him
pause for thought before making the arrest’ and
that DC Collins had, therefore, ‘committed the
offence of falsely imprisoning Mr R’ Neverthe-
less, he went on to conclude that despite there
being ‘sufficient evidence to provide a realistic
prospectof a conviction’, it was notin the public
interest to prosecute DC Collins as ‘criminal
proceedingsare lengthy, expensive, and stressful
for all concerned’ and ‘not necessarily
desireable.” According to Mr Saunders, ‘perhaps
the effect of a prosecution would be out of all
proportion to the seriousness of the alleged
offence, or perhaps there are good reasons for
the alleged offender’s conduct.’

Quite frankly, this is a remarkable confession
and indicative of the fact that there is one law
for black and another law for blue. Cananyone
imagine the CPS refusing to prosecute a black
person because proceedings are too lengthy,
expensiveand stressful for all concerned? NMP
has no hesitation in stating that DC Collins
escaped being charged with false imprisonment
because he is a police officer. This is totally
unacceptable. Mr R had his home broken into
by three trespassers who violated his privacy,
abused him, falsely imprisoned himand carted
him off against his will to a police station
where he was further detained and humiliated
and fingerprinted.

Following an investigation by Area 1 Com-
plaints Unit, it was decided that DC Collins
would face internal disciplinary proceedings
for abuse of authority, specifically oppressive
conduct. The hearing took place on 12Novem-
ber 1993 at Tintangel House, 18 months after
Mr R’s wrongful arrest. The ‘prosecution’” was
conducted by the complaints officer, Chief
Inspector Keenan. DC Collins was defended
by a representative of the Police Federation.
And the ‘judge’ was apparently a senior police
officer from Area 1, the same area where DC
Collins was based. There were no independent
observers allowed to attend, despite repeated
requests. Only serving police officers were
present. The NMP worker accompanying Mr
R was not even allowed to enter the room
when Mr R gave evidence. At the end of the
day, DC Collins was not surprisingly cleared
ofallcharges. Mr Ris currently seeking advise
on a possible civil action against the police.

Whot o farcel

The cases outlined above clearly illustrate that
the police complaints system is a complete
farce. It lacks independence, accountability,
credibility and competence. The majority of
those who adjudicate on behalf of the PCA
have no legal background and limited legal
knowledge. In our experience, their decisions
bear no relation to reality.

As far as the public interest is concerned, we
suggest that it would be best served by send-
ingaclearand unambiguous messageto ‘gung
ho” police officers that unlawful, violent and
racist behaviour will not be tolerated in any
shape or form. Unfortunately, the PCA is in-
herently unable to send such a message. It is
hardly surprising, therefore, that the commu-
nity, black and white, has no confidence in a
system where police officers investigate other
police officers.

Colin Imbert, beaten by police on 23 March 1993. A
civil action is currently being sought following a raid
in 1992 by police officers from Forest Gate, reported
in last year's Ahnual Report, which resultedin Colin's
mother collapsing with a heart attack
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Containing the Community

In previous Annual Reports, NMP has docu-
mented policing against black people in
Newham and how such policing reflects the
attitudesand priorities of the police asa whole.
The agenda of the police is clear: inner city
communities like Newham must be contained
and controlled. Consequently, it comes as no
surprise that police harassment and malprac-
tice has reached endemic levels as whole
communities have been written off and stere-
otyped as potential threats to public order.

NMP hasalways strived to combat this cynical
disregard for the rights of local people and
demand that the views of local people are
taken on board (forcibly, if necessary) by the
powers that be.

In November 1992, NMP was approached by
the Dray family for help following the arrest
and assault of Lee and Tony Dray. Their story
is unfortunately a familiar one. After months
of persistent harassment, after regular formal
complaints which were ignored or belittled,
thetwo brothers wereagain arrested, withtwo
others, Stephen Rozee and Chris Moore, by
officers from Plaistow police station, allegedly
because they had been involved in a fight
outside Newham Community College -
something they have always denied and for
which they were never charged. During their
arrest, they were assaulted, with Lee in par-
ticular receiving serious injuries to his head,
and subsequently charged with affray. In ad-
dition, Lee was charged with assaulting a po-
lice officer. The Drays had sought help from a
number of agencies, including Newham
Council’s Police Unit, without success, before
NMP took up their case.
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Largely due to the determination of the family
and the strength of the evidence showing the
innocence of the four young men, a campaign
demanding an end to police harassment and
justice for the Drays was formed which at-
tracted considerable local support. What made
this campaign unusual, however, was that the
Drays are a white working-class family and
that their campaign was supported by large
numbers of both black and white people.
Moreover, the fact that NMP played a central
role in supporting the campaign represented a
new direction for the Project. For, despite its
history of opposition to all forms of police
harassment, NMP works primarily with black
people under attack. This campaign is, how-
ever, an important one, which may help to
highlight important lessons for how black and
white unity, so often talked about but seldom
defined, may be realistically achieved.

The ordeal begins

Ataround 3pm, on Friday 13 November 1992
in Jones Road, Plaistow E13, Lee, Tony, Stephen
and Chris were stopped by two officers, PC
Olver and WPC Exton, who allege that Lee
Dray refused to speak to them about the fight
outside of the College and that they were
subsequently assaulted. Their request for ad-
ditional officers brought a number of police
vans and cars to the scene. The four were
arrested. Tony, who was 15-years-old at the
time, was punched in the face and had his head
slammed against a car. i .

Onarriving at Plaistow police station, the four
were kept waiting in police vans at the back of
the station. It was here that Lee Dray was




lee affer the baating by Plaistow police officers

punched in the head, pulled out of the van by
his earsand throwninto a second van. He was
kickedand punched and his face was squashed
against one of the van’s benches. Lee alleges
that the officer responsible for this appalling
assault was PC Fortune. Photographs taken in
the cells testify to the brutality of the officers
involved.

To make matters worse, there was an incident
the following night outside Newham Squash
Club next to Newham Leisure Centre, and
Newham Way, again involving PC Fortune.
After one person had been asked to leave the
Club by five officers who had entered the
premises, his friends also decided to leave.
QOutside they were pushed into the adjacent
park by officers who attempted to make them
runacross it. These officers then began punch-
ing them and a number of arrests were made.
Tony Dray was amongst those arrested, and
despite being a juvenile, his mother was pre-
vented from finding out what was happening
to her son by officers at the scene.

The campdaign

In January 1993, Cllr James Goodman, who is
Newham Council’s spokesperson on policing,
tabled a number of questions concerning the
case to the Newham Police Community Con-
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sultative Group (PCCG). Meanwhile, the Jus-
tice for the Dray Family Campaign was
launched. A public meeting held on 25 Feb-
ruary at the Keir Hardie Neighbourhood
Church in Canning Town attracted over 100
people, with many local people coming for-
ward with their own stories of harassment. At
this meeting, the name of PC Fortune kept
comingup, asdid a pattern of police harassment
of young people intheSouth Plaistow /Canning
Town area. It was agreed that people would
attend the next PCCG meeting and demand
an explanation from the police and action from
the council.

On 18 March, some 70 people packed the PCCG
meeting at East Ham Town Hall. Afterastormy
meeting, and despite objections fromthe police,
the PCCG’s police complaints sub-committee
agreed to move its next meeting from the
Town Hall to Keir Hardie Neighbourhood
Church. The Campaign immediately decided
to mobilise as many people as possible to be
there. On 13 April, the Church was again
packed, although more subdued than the pub-
lic meeting, as many people were worried
about speaking publicly about their own sto-

Promoting the first and second meetings at Keir
Hardie Church

1

ries of police harassment in front of senior
police officers like the Community Liaison
officer, Chief Inspector Ibbotson. PC Fortune
was again named several times by local resi-
dents, and Chief Inspector Ibbotson’s state-
ment that PC Fortune had been transferred to
East Ham police station was greeted with de-
rision. The sub-committee agreed to call upon
the PCCG to hold an inquiry into policing of
young people in the Canning Town area.

‘During May, the Campaign entered into pro-

tracted correspondence with the Crown Pros-
ecution Service concerning their inability to
bring the case to trial. The four defendants
were forced to attend five hearings in all, each
time finding that the CPS did not have the
necessary papers to set a date for the trial. This
delay resulted inLee Draylosing hisjob. Finally,
Newham Magistrates Court decided not to
accept the continued waste of the court’s time
and the case was thrown out. Amazingly, the
CPS decided some weeks later to re-instate the
case, despite protests from the Campaign and
local councillors. At this stage, over 1000 sig-
natures had been collected demanding that the
charges be dropped.

The PCCG Inquiry

In June, the PCCG held its inquiry in Canning
Town, chaired by Clir James Goodman. Some
30 young people wereinterviewed by the panel.
Amongst the many shocking cases outlined in
the inquiry’s report, those in the panel below
highlight the extent of police harassment in
Canning Town.

The conclusions and recommendations of the
reportare as damning as the cases from which
they are drawn. However, the Inquiry panel
acknowledged the limited scale of their report
and, therefore, recommended “that the Youth

PCCG Enquiry
into police
harassment

of young people
in the

Canning Town
area

Conducted on
17th and 18th June 1993
at the Youth House,
Fords Park Rd,
London E16

The Inquiry Report
and Community Section of Newham police
invite an independent external organisation
to conductan investigation into the behaviour
of police officers in the Canning Town area’.

The panel noted that:

It is .. . likely that the experiences of the young
people interviewed by the PCCG are not unigue.
On the contrary, as the young people themselves
stressed - this is part of growing up in Fast London
-t is “normal”.’ :
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WE write to express our views as co-  to the extent thar this is being viewed
uncillors who atiended the meeting of  as harassment.

the Police Complaints Moenitoring

nity Consultative Group on April 13. concern expressed by residents.
We share the concerns of residents

We have received a worrying num-
who have expressed serious allegati- ber of complaints from residents
ons that young people are being targ- concerning  allegations of police

We feel the article (Recorder, April
Sub-committee of the Police Commu-  22) failed to highlight the depth of
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which have been drawn to our atien-  Brown seeking assurances that he will
tion has made us anxious.

investigate these serious allegations,
We are concerned that a serious Tift  examine the conduct of his officers,

in police community relations with and to express to them that police

the Canning Town, Custom House misconduct wili not be tolerated and

eted unnecessarily by police officers  misconduct, The numercus incidents

They also recommended that the Chair of the
PCCG request a meeting with the Metropoli-
tan Police Commissioner and other relevant
local representatives to raise the concerns out-
lined in the report, with a view to “finding
positive solutions to improve relations be-
tween the police and the community”.

The panel concluded that:

‘Overall we have found that {the) approach to po-
licing in an area of very high youth unemployment
and extreme wrban deprivation has criminalised a
whole section of young people and has led to a
breakdown of Police-community relations.”

The police response

Thereport was discussed at the PCCG meeting
in September and, predictably, the police re-
fused to comment, claiming that they had not
had enough time to examine the report’s con-
tents. They also continued to state that the
report was ‘anecdotal’ and that where specific
allegations were made, they would be inves-
tigated. They, therefore, deliberately failed to
consider one of the central points of the report
that young people are unwilling to complain
about police misconduct because of fear of
retribution. Indeed, for this very reason, both
NMP and the Campaign had at no time de-
manded that the cases in the report should be
investigated by the police. Instead, we wanted
to see some recognition that thereis a problem
at street-level, and a commitment from senior
officers that action would be taken internally.

Most of the recommendations were accepted
by the members of the PCCG; however, the
police’s refusal to reply to the report meant
that a decision to meet Commissioner Paul
Condon was delayed until after the next meet-

will cause irreparable damage.

areas is developing, which, if not isunacceptable. We have also reques-
dealt with urgently and expediently, 1ted he meet residents. — ALEX

THOMPSON and JAMES GOOD-
We have written 10 Chief Supt MAN, Newham Council.

Newham Recorder 13 May 1993

ing of the PCCG on 11 November, when the
policeresponded by giving along explanation
of the various sections of the Police and Crimi-
nal Evidence Actcovering police powers. Chief
Superintendent Brown also stated that ‘such
allegations do much to undermine the confi-
dence that the public have in its police service’.
However, for many residentsinCanning Town,
any confidence that they may have had has
long been shattered by the actions of police
officers on the streets, not by any report.

The triai

On 22 November, over a year after the incident
in Jones Road, Lee and Tony Dray, Stephen
Rozee and Chris Moore stood trial at
Snaresbrook Crown Court. From the start, the
evidence presented by police officers was
wildly contradictory, and after hearing sixdays
of prosecution evidence, the judge threw the
case out on 30 November. The trial still Ieft a
number of unanswered questions, not least of
which was why the prosecution was ever
brought.

Amongst the most extraordinary evidence
presented came from PC Olver, who was the
officer that the four defendants had allegedly
assaulted:

B PC Olver said that he had no dealings with
Chris Moore and had not even seen him at the
incident. When asked if Chris had assaulted
him, he denied it. Why then was Chris Moore
arrested for assault?

8 PCOlver claimed thathe had been given the
full committal papers in order to identify the
boys and make a second statement. This claim
was also made by a number of other officers,

who also admitted unauthorised access to cus-
tody records. Why was PC Olver allowed to
write a statement, supposedly based on “what
he remembers’ in this manner? Is it common
practice for officers from Plaistow to have such
extensive access to case papers?

B ’C Olver claimed that, because he is fat, he -

was worried that he would have been unable
to catch Lee Dray if Lee had run away. This
was his reason for grabbing hold of Lee as
soon as he got out of the police car and before
he had even spoken to Lee.

B Olver admitted that he did not check how
badly injured the person assaulted at the col-
lege was and did not even know whether an
arrestable offence had been committed. By
what authority in law did he, therefore, grab
hold of Lee Dray?

Olver’s evidence was not alone in failing to
stand up to cross-examination. For instance, a
number of other officers claimed to have seen
the assault on PC Olver. Although PC Olver
claimed that the incident took place before
other officers arrived at the scene. The details
of how the four youths were arrested were
even more confused, and there was no expla-
nation then or since of how Lee received his
injuries.

8 PC Simpson stated that, at Plaistow police
station, he had taken Lee from one van into
another, where he was joined by PC Fortune.
PC Fortune stated that he escorted Lee out of
the van. Neither officer wrote anything in their
statements about Lee being covered in blood,
although in court, PC Fortune said that the
blood in the photographs must have come
from the cuts on Lee’s face. There were no cuts
on Lee’s face - he was bleeding from a serious
injury being his ear.

The evidence of PC Fortune is central to the
question of how Lee Dray was brutally injured.
Another of PC Fortune’s colleagues, PC
Williams, was certain that Lee had no blood on
his face when he left Jones Road, and yet Lee’s
face was covered in blood by the time he was
photographed in the cells at Plaistow police
station. His injuries must logically have been
inflicted sometime between leaving Jones Road

ANNUAL REPORT 1993/9.

and being placed in a cell at the poli}ge station.

Undercross-examination, PC Fortune claimed
to have ‘restrained’ Lee on the grounds that he
was being violent, something which is contra-
dicted by PC Simpson, who said that Lee was
quiet. The method of restraint included
‘holding’ Lee’s head against the bench of the
police van - although Lee describes this as
having his head ‘ground’ forcefully against it.
It is, therefore, perhaps unsurprising that PC
Fortune admitted having his hands checked
by a police surgeon because he was concerned
about a ‘malicious’ complaint against him -
particularly because in his nine years as a
police officer, he has faced eight such ‘mali-
cious’ complaints, all of which have been
dropped. Is this medical check on officers’
hands now becoming standard practice at
Plaistow police station?

Following the police evidence, there was one
final witness: a ‘passer-by’ named Matthew
Haslett, who allegedly intervened to assist
WPC Exton. His evidence had been described
as crucial by the prosecution when requesting
an adjournment to locate him. Sharon Dray, in
a statement to the PCCG after the trial, said,

“His statement had puzzled me for over a year.
Tjust couldn’t work out why he was lying - the
police to my mind had reasons to lie, they were
accused of assault, but this witness had no
reason.”

The reason became clear when Haslett, who
was reluctant to give evidence, was finally
persuaded to do so.

Only minutes before Haslett took the witness
box, the prosecution informed the defence,
with some embarrassment, that their ‘crucial’ .
witness, who the CPS had claimed had no
criminal record, had in fact appeared at New-
ham Magistrates Court on assault charges on
themorning of the incidentin Jones Road, and
was on his way from the court to a friend’s
house when he became in%olved. His state-
ment, however, states that hehad travelled
from the Thatched House area of Leytonstone.
When asked why he had lied, he said that he
had told the CID officer who interviewed him
that he has come from the court in Stratford.




Haslett was extremely aggressive when cross-
examined; He swore at the defence barristers,
claimed that PC Olver was bleeding from the
nose, which the officer had earlier denied. He
claimed that WPC Exton was kicked by the
defendants when lying on the ground, which
she had also denied. Then came the most
astonishing piece of evidence of the trial: Haslett
stated that he worked as a chef at Limehouse
and Plaistow police stations up until five
months before the incident at which he had
been ‘passing by’; he had been suspended
because of the criminal charges against him.
He stated that he had received a letter of com-
mendation from a senior officer at Plaistow to
take to his court appearance that day. Was
Haslett’s presence at the arrest of the four
youths mere coincidence? What motive did he
have for backing the police’s hugely inconsist-
ent story - had he been promised something,
like his old job back?

South Newham Action
on Policing

Following the inadequate response of the po-
lice at meetings of the PCCG, a meeting was
held in Canning Town of those involved in the
Justice for the Dray Family Campaign, and it
was agreed to form a new group, South New-
ham Action on Policing (SNAP), to campaign
for fair and equal policing in the south of the
borough, regardless of age, race or the area in
which people live. It was decided that the
group would prioritise promoting legal rights
for young people and campaigning against
police harassment. Theimportance of the group
is best summed up by Sharon Dray, the Chair
of SNAP:

‘It has taken a long time, nearly a year of constant
lies about my sons, to learn what I have learnt in
campaigning against this injustice. I have learnt
that you can make people listen, you can show the
police that their behaviour will not go unchal-
lenged, and most importantly of all, I have learnt
not to believe that police officers akways tell the
truth. L have seen that for myself. If  don’t let other
people know what I have found out, then after the
fuss has died down, someone else’s children could
face what Lee and Tony have had to face, but

ANNUAL REPORT 199394

NEWHAM MONITORING PROJECT

without the help to fight against the lies. What use
will knowing what is really happening be then?’

The Bootleg
Newham Recorder
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Picket of Plaistow police station

SNAF and NMP called an angry picket of
Plaistow police station on 18 November, just
days before the trial, which over 100 people
attended. The picket highlighted not only the
Campaign but also the demands of the Second
Avenue Community Association for charges
against Abdul Kalaam to be dropped (See
Community Associations Chapter). This wasa
practical example of the struggles of the black
and white communities coming together, and
as such should be viewed as an important step
forward, particularly in linking the police’s
failure to respond to racial harassment with
their seeming enthusiasm for harassing young
people in south Newham.

Those involved in setting up SNAP are clear
aboutthereformsofthe police thatareurgently
needed: proper, local democratic control, with
powers to {orce senior officers to explain the
actions of their junior officers; an end to the
discredited police complaints procedure,
where police officers are investigated by their
colleagues, and the creation of anindependent
police complaints system; and a greater will-
ingness by senior officers to suspend and dis-
miss individual officers in cases involving se-
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NMP and SNAP's picket of Pidistow Police Station

rious complaints of misconduct. These are
demands which NMP haslong advocated,and
in the coming year, we are committed to help-

ing SNAP’s development as a campaigning

group. In the process, both black and white
communities in south Newham may also
slowly begin to create a common history of
resistance to all forms of injustice.

i
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Thelast year has seenatremendous upsurgein
racist activity throughout East London. On a
number of occasions the media ‘bandwagon’
has rolled into the area to highlight this new
phenomenon. At NMP we have repeatedly
had to inform not just the media but a plethora
of national anti-racist organisations of the
reality of racial violence and the long tradition
within the communities of east London of
fighting back.

The tradition of resistance within the black
communities of both Newham and Tower
Hamlets is one that stretches back many years.
Itisa traditiondrawnuponbyanew generation
who continue to asserttheirindependenceand
militancy in the face of a stark political and
economic environment.

In the late "70s and early ‘80s, at a time when
the National Front (NF) looked set to take
council seatsinanumber of east London wards,
a similar upsurge of violent racist attacks and
fascistactivity took place. The fight back of the
black community is well-documented in the
book Newham: the forging of a black com-
munity” (NMP, 1991). In Tower Hamlets, the
community response to this violenceled to the
NF being physically driven out of Brick Lane
and to a one-day strike against racial violence
involving 10,000 Bangladeshi workers who
marched to central London in order to make
their demands heard.

Issues faced by Bengaii youth in
Tower Hamilets.

Links between NMP and community organi-
sations in Tower Hamlets were forged in the
1980s. But in 1990, the increasing number of
calls being made to the NMP 24-hour emer-
gency serviceline from young peoplein Tower
Hamlets suffering high levels of police har-
assment, demanded a more concerted ap-
proach. Hence, after a number of incidents on
Stepney’s Ocean Estate, NMP supporters and
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volunteers met with a group of young people
from the area. It soon became clear that not
only were police a major problem but the
Liberal neighbourhood authority were com-
pounding social problems in the area by their
reluctance to give any resources to the Bengali
community, particularly to young people.

As a practical consequence of the failure to
make any youth provision, young people had
nowhereto go. NMP, in conjunction with Iocal
students, organised a series of ‘raves’. NMP
also cooperated with local community groups
to produce ‘rights cards’” which were then
distributed amongst young people. Inaddition,
links were also forged with various other or-
ganisations such as a group, providing basic
support to isolated families suffering extreme
forms of racial harassment, working on the
Teviot estate, Poplar. More information about
thisworkcan be found in NMP’s 1992 and 1993
Annual Reports where we documented the
role NMP played in supporting a picket or-
ganised by ‘Ocean Youth’ of Poplar College to
defend students victimised by the college’s
disciplinary procedures.

The attack on Quddus Ali

In September 1993, against a backdrop of a
sharp rise in racist activity Quddus Al, a 17-
year-old boy from the Canon street area was
set upon and beaten by up to nine grown men.
(Juddus and three friends had just left a video
shop and were on their way home. As they
walked past the Dean Swift pub near Watney
market, Whitechapel, they were stopped by a
number of men who threatened and abused
them.. Quddus’ friends managed to run
away.Quddus was unable to escape and was
left to the mercy of a group of thugs. He was
kicked to the ground and savagely beaten.

The community response.

The horrific attack on Quddus took place on §

September. Two
days later, on 10
September, hun-
dreds of young
people fromacross
the borough

outside the Lon-
don  hospital,
Whitechapel, or-
ganised by various
= political and com-
Quddus Ali munity groups.
Inside the hospi-
tal’sintensivecare unitlay Quddus Alionalife
support machine.

By 5.00pm, more than 500 young Bengalis had
gathered outside the hospital. The mood, at
this point, was militant, but restrained. The
police, for their part, appeared to be caught off
guard by the size of the protestand continually
attempted to coral the youth into one small
area outside the hospital. The constant push-
ing and shoving by officers was causing un-
necessary aggravation though this had not, as
yet, led to any confrontation.

However, after a number of emotionally
charged speeches, the police decided to move
in to the heart of the vigil in order, it would
seem, to deal with a group of children throw-
ing rolled-up stickers ata police officer. Given
the history of police violence and racism indi-
cated above (and outlined below) this was a
stupid and insensitive step after which, con-
frontation, was inevitable.

Asthe policeattempted toarrest sections of the
crowd, the surrounding youths fought back,
forcing the police to retreat. At this stage these
officers withdrew only to be replaced by the
riot police with dogs who proceeded to attack
the youth as they spilled onto the Whitechapel
High Road. After a few minutes, NMP work-
ers, community activists and local youth
workers managed to pull the young people
together into a group. The main purpose of
this was to calm the situation and prevent
further arrests and injuries. The police over-
whelmingly outnumbered the demonstrators
and seemed to be using indiscriminate vio-
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flocked to a vigil
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lence against the protestors, includfﬁg young
children.

Once thesituation had calmed down, the youth
set off on an impromptu march to Brick Lane.
The intention was to rally there and then pro-
ceed by either sending a delegation to Leman ~
street police station or picketing the police
station itself in support of those arrested.

However, the police were not content to allow
the peaceful demonstration to continue to Brick
Lane unchallenged and proceeded to hound
and chase the youth. In Brick Lane itself, even
though it was clear the young people were in
no way a threat to the police, police officers
continued to rampage. Community activists,
including NMP workers and volunteers, suc-
ceeded in putting a lid on any further violence
by taking the young demonstrators to a park
from where they could safely travel home,
Even at this stage, the police, in full riot gear,
surrounded the park, their numbers easily in
excess of those of the youth. Despite this, the
protest dispersed peacefully with no further
arrests.

The final tally was nine youths arrested, while
scores had been injured. For several days

afterward, hundreds of police officers occu-
pied Brick Lane. -

The political defence begins

Throughout the nextday, Saturday 11Septem-
ber, meetings of young local people, commu-
nity elders as well as activists and political
groups, were held. “Youth Connection’, an
alliance of over 30 different youth clubs and
groups, called a series of meetings in Hanbury
Street, E1 inviting delegates and representa-
tives from estates throughout Tower Hamlets.
The media, which had descended on Tower
Hamlets likelocusts, werefirmly shutout of all
meetings. Leaders of Youth Connection set a
lead in protesting at the police’s provocative
actions with a call for a mass demonstration,
sweeping aside calls from more gonservative
elements for informal meetings with the police
and return to the previous status quo. To this
end, delegates were sent to other parts of Lon-
donwithalargeconcentration of Bengali youth,
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Police hurt in Asian protest

Lawrence Donegan
and John Exard

IX pecple needed hospital

treatment Jast night after

a vigil in east London by
about 600 people in protest
against the attack on an Asian
student, Quaddus All, endad in
vialence.

Seotland Yard said 10 people
were arrested. Five police offi-
cers and one civilian were
treated at hospital, while 20
other officers received minor
wnjures..

Eyawitnesses said police
were attacked with stones and
banners while atiempting to ar-
rest u demonstrator.

Brian Williamson, the man-
ager of a grocer's store oppusite
the Royal London hospitai,

scene of the vigil, said until
then the protest had been
peaceful, “That all changed
when the police moved in"”

Kevin Blowe, who was at the
vigil for the Newham Monitor-
ing Project, said police over-
reacted to a few young Asians
Aicking rolled-up Anti-Nazi
League stickers at them and
made an arrest A lot of pecple
were leaving the vigil because
they were bored, when three of
ficers went to arrest ane of the
young men. The crowd grabbed
the lad back, then other police
moved in’”

Humaiun Kobir, aged 15, who
was among the demenstrators,
said: “Once the police arrested
someone everyone just rushed
in and started beating the
police up. There were about 16
officers and they were all get-

ting beaten up. That's when the
riot police came ”

A police officer said: ""They
promised us there would no
vicience and it would just be 2
peaceful vigil, For that reason
we only had eight to 10 officers
at the sceng ta start with.

Mr Al, aged 17, from Step-
ney, was with three friends
when he was set upon by a2
group of eight whites, including
a number of skinheads. He still
critical but stable last night, a
hospital spokesman said. The
attack has prompted renewed
calls for legislation o deal with
racially motivated violence.
There were 4,140 racial inci-
dents in London in 1992, The
largest group of viclms were
Asians,

The Guardian Sepiember 11th 1993

such as Drummond Street in Camden Town
which had itself recently seen demonstrations
against racist violence.

Meanwhile, the police’s overbearing presence
in Brick Lane had not decreased. Indeed,
hundreds of police, many in riot gear, had
swamped arelatively small area of Brick Lane,
stopping any young black person congregat-
ing ina group, and searching and intimidating
them.

That evening, however, the police’s true col-
ours were seen. Firstly, the most senior officer
in East London, DAC Taylor decided to pay a
visit to Brick Lane, to speak to the ‘community’
and, in time honoured fashion, to offer mean-
ingless platitudes about “partnership’ and ‘joint
action’ to tackle racist violence. He would not
address individual cases, nor would he com-
ment on the brutality of the police at the vigil
and their virtual occupation of Brick Lane.
Nevertheless, IDAC Taylor did manage to
comument that if it were not for the ‘gang fight-
ing” there would be no
need for such police ac-
tions! But when pressed,
no recent instance of so
called ‘gang fighting’
could be cited. Ironically,
Whilst DAC Taylor was
‘consulting” with the
community in a meeting
room in Hanbury street,
outside a police officer in
riot gear had decanted
froma vanand was ‘ques-
tioning’ a number of
young people including

A MILITANT group set up by young Ben-
galis angered at racist acts came into the
open today, writes Shekhar Bhatia.

The organisation, called Youth Connec-
tion, has been established to help Asian
youngsters who suffer at the hands of
racists or get into trouble with police.

The group claims to have 500 members
and meets around Brick Lane to co-
ordinate action and rallies against the
British National Party.

One of the group's leaders, Helal
Ahmed, 24, said: “We are ready to take
action against racists or police harass-
ment, lawfully or unlawfully, You have
to fight violenrce and racists - you just

oneofthe YouthConnectiondelegates. When
this individual protested one of the officers
grabbed him by the lapels and shook him
violently. Some youth then ran into the meet-
ing, demanding the presence of the DAC out-
side so that he could see first hand the reality
of community policing in the East End. A
senior officer was promptly despatched to
deal with the problem. He returned after
despatching the riot officer and in a state of
irritation having seen reality impinge on this
PR exercise. The DAC would not comment
further on this and the meeting soon ended.

The second incident that night further high-
lighted the racism of the Metropolitan Police,
but this time at the highest levels. As DAC
Taylor was speaking, a mob of up to fifty BNP
members were leafleting the Isle of Dogs in
preparation for the forthcoming local by-elec-
tion in the Millwall ward. Apparently, after
leafleting, this mob left the Island and trav-
elled to Whitechapel ending up at the Blind
Beggar pub on Whitechapel High Street. The
police have subsequently admitted that up to
this point they had kept the group under cov-
ertsurveillance. However, they cannotaccount
for what happened next.

Afteradrinking sessionatthe pubitseemsthat
the group, congregated near Brick Lane, en-
tering the Lane from a side street. In full view
of the police, they then charged down Brick
Lane smashing shop windows and damaging
cars. As the local Bengali youth poured out
from the cafesthey were met by awall of police
officers which prevented them from reaching

Young Asians unite on racism

can't let it happen.” Mr Helal and about
75 demonstrators, including members of
Militant and the Socialist Workers Par-
ty, confronted the BNP in Brick Lane
yesterday.

Other voung Asians have decided fo
join him to voice their protest rather
than let militant groups take up the man-
tle, he said.

Today the organisation unveiled a
huge banner outside Thames Magistrates
Court where nine people were appearing
on riot charges.

Mr Helal said: “We want the charges
dropped and we want the real villains,
the BNP, put in the dock.”

Evening Standard 13th September 1993

the BNP mob, who rapidly escaped down
another sideroad. Not one of the attackers has
been caught or prosecuted, despite the fact
that they were, on the police’s own admission,
under covert surveillance, and despite the
massive police presence in Brick Lane, which

had previously prevented Bengali groups

gathering in groups of five let alone forty to
fifty. In fact, the police presence, it would
seem, far from deterring the BNP actually en-
couraged them. Either they knew they could
bank on the police’s inactivity or were confi-
dent that they would be safe from the further
inevitably violent wrath of the youth.

Immediately after the BNP attack and the clear
police complicity with it, community anger
boiled over. Hundreds of young people con-
gregated in Brick Lane demanding action.
Despite the time, 12.30 pm, and the cold, they
set off ona march through the community, the
aim of which was to reach the police station.
Dozens of young peoplejoined the impromptu
demonstration, which was re-routed by the
police. Some young people wereseenclimbing
from their windows and joining the march
despite the concerns of their parents. This gen-
eration is sick of the racism that has plagued
their community and, like the generation which
had driven the fascists from Brick Lanein 1978,
they now clearly feel that their fight has to be
taken to a higher and more organised level.

On Monday 13 September 1993, at 9.30 am the
nine young men arrested three days earlier at
the vigil made their first court appearance . A
picket was organised by Youth Connection
and was supported by NMP. The nine wereall
charged with Section 1 of the 1986 Public
Order Act - Riot! On conviction this carries a
maximum of 10 years imprisonment. All the
nine wereunder 25, two under 17. Atleasttwo
of the defendants required hospital treatment,
after their arrest (see below). In court the nine
had draconian bail conditions imposed by the
police removed. They were told, however,
that they had to be indoors at 10 pm every
night.

In Brick Lane meanwhile the police presence
remained as conspicuous as ever. And it was
becoming increasingly obvious that this would
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remain to be the case, at least unti} after the
Local election in Millwall.

The background o the BNP on
the Isle of Dogs

Orn Thursday 16th September 1993 history was "~

made in the Isle of Dogs. For only the second
time in British political history an openly fas-
cist party had won a local council seat. Amidst
scenes at the election count of seig-heiling
skinheads, the BNT candidate Derek Beackon,
accompanied by a motley crew of neo-nazis,
was told that he had won 1480 votes, winning
the seat by just seven votes.

This victory, which despite media speculation
came as a surprise, outraged many sections of
the community, white and black. Only a few
months earlier, in another local election, the
BNP had come third, defeating the Tories.

On the Island itself, since the election the BNP
have done a great deal of low-profile cam-
paigning work, particularly on the estates. They
feed off the simmering local discontent over
housing and unemployment. The danger is
that now, after securing one council seat, they
are increasingly looking like the only viable
alternative to the other failed and discredited
political parties. And due to the decentralised
system of local government introduced by the
Liberals, whereby council services are con-
trolled at a neighbourhood level by the coun-
cillors from that area, a very small number of

Ezhnle profile
Tower Hamlets
Asian: 26.89% Others: 1.54%

Blagk: 7.14% White: 56.97%

Milhwaill ward
Asian: 13.47%

Others: 1.34%

0 total housing stock of 67,581,
45,475 are unfit or in need of repair.

Black: 5.84%, White: 81.51%
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councillors control huge budgets. This means
that in the Isle of Dogs, the BNP need only to
win two more seats to gain control of a budget
inexcess of£20 million. The prospect of this for
black families living on the Island is terrifying.

Atthe end of the day, the Isle of Dogs housing
and other social problems are due to the poli-
cies of the present Conservative government
which has presided over increasing poverty
throughout the country.

Political Parties play race card.

Thesad truthisthatat the Millwall by-election,
asatso many previous elections, the established
political groups - Labour, Liberal, Conservative
- all played the race card. The Labour candi-
dates, far from offering an alternative vision
for the future, were, in fact, so racist that a
number of principled Labour activists on the
ground refused to canvass for them. Labour
also declared, only a few days before the count
(apparently basing its predictions on false
canvass refurns), that there was a serious
prospect of the BNP winning thus elevating
the BNP’s appeal in the eyes of the local elec-
torate.

The Labour party’s response to complaints of
racismat the ward level hasbeen abysmal. The
results of an internal party inquiry have not
been made public. Furthermore, the divisions
within the local Labour ward led to a formal
splitin February with elements that local anti-
racists believed had pandered to the racist vote
going off to form the East London People’s
Alliance (ELPA). ELPA, who claim to have
25% of the vote on the Island, will be standing
candidates in the May elections on the issue of
the ‘hidden homeless’. The very real threat is
that ELPA will split the anti-BNP vote in May
thus giving rise to the conditions whereby the
BNP can gain control of the neighbourhood.

The Conservatives throughout east London
have also succeeded in turning race into an
electoralissue. Inalocal council by-election in
Silvertown, Newham, earlier in the year the
Tories distributed a leaflet alleging the Labour
council was ‘ethnically cleansing’ the area of
whites by giving housing preference to black
families.

- NEWHAM ONITRIN PROJECT

But it has been the Liberals of Tower Hamlets
who have come in for the most sustained
criticism for producing, over the years, elec-
tion materials that pandered to racial preju-
dice through its message of ‘Island homes for
Island people’. National press coverage of
Liberal election tactics finally panicked the
Liberal Democrat leadership into promising
an internal inquiry, although this fell well-
short of an investigation into institutionalised
racism within Tower Hamlets council policies.
In the past, the Lib-Dems have consistently
denied that there is a need for such an inquiry
although they were well aware of the allega-
tions against them, particularly the concern
over their housing practices which have been
criticised by the Commission for Racial Equal-

ity.
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Newham Conservatives' ‘ethnic cleansing' leaflet

Physical intimidation of black
voters

During the Millwall election, the presence of
BNF thugs on the streets also had the effect of
deterring black families from attending the
polls to vote. In particular, tower block en-
trances would be patrolled by groups of BNP
thugs who would harass and intimidate black
people. Furthermore, on a number of separate
occasions, gangs of white youths were seen
walking up and down the streets shouting
abuse and singing ‘Rights for Whites’ and
‘Rule Britannia'.

FOCUS FIGHTS

{FOR MRS X

§ Mrs X, 474 year old decorated during the war, fives
§ alone on the fifth fioor of a block on, possibly,
{ Wapping's most dangerous estate. A recent FOCLS
f area discovered that:

One of the liberal Focus racist leaflets

It is clear that many black families did not
exercise theirright to vote. However, given the
obstacles they faced this is hardly surprising.
And ifthey did succeed in getting past the BNP
thugs on the streets and at the polling stations,
they were faced with a choice of candidates,
which it would have been hard to differentiate
between.

Youth Connections organises
demonstration

Youth Connection is made up of over thirty
local youth clubs and estate-based youth
groups. The organisation made a definite deci-
sion not to adopt any formal structure so as to
allow its members to react as quickly as possi-
ble on an ad-hoc basis as and when required.
Within hours of the disturbances at the vigil
outside Whitechapel Hospital, Youth Connec-

The Youth Connection March
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tionhad called ademonstration, askiﬁg people
to assemble in Altab Ali Park, on Whitechapel
High Road, on 3 October 1993.

By the day of the demonstration, the BNP had
already won its seat and regular protests were

being held at the top of Brick Lane where the *

BNP conducts a regular paper sale. These pro-
tests had succeeded in physically disrupting
the paper sale to the extent that, for the first
time in many years, the BNP had been pre-
vented from selling its papers over several
successive weeks.

- The Youth Connection march was organised

at relatively short notice. Despite this, hun-
dreds of local Bengali youth attended the
demonstration which attracted a total of over
2,000 people. The march focused on the follow-
ing demands: the dropping of the charges
against the Tower Hamlet Nine; opposition to
the BNF; an end to police racism and racial
violence. Predictions, fromanumberof sources,
that trouble would occur, proved unfounded
as the demonstration was tightly stewarded.
The community had shown yet again that the
leadership of ‘national’ groupings such as the
ANL and ARA was not required and that true

opposition to racism must come from the

grassroots. The youth proved capable of lead-
ing their own struggle and forced the rest of
the ‘movement’ to fallin behind them. It was in
this vein that the youth went on to organise the
defence of their brothers, the ‘Tower Hamlets
9, arrested at the vigil on 10 September 1993.

Tower Hamlets Nine Defence
Campaign

v The campaign was launched on
the 11 September 1993 with mem-
bers of Youth Connection calling
for support for the nine youths
arrested outside the hospital and
organising the first picket of the
newly-named ‘Tower Hamlets
Nine Defence €ampaign’. The
campaign’saims wefesimple: the
dropping of the charges against
all nine youths; an end to the
ongoing police investigation
which was based.at West Ham
Police Station; and anend to police brutality .
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The Tower Hamlets Nine ouiside
Thames Magistrates court

Newham Monitoring Project was asked to help
run the campaign and immediately sought the
direct involvement of all of the defendants.
Due to the fact that most of those arrested were
from the Canon Street area, it was decided
that, with the support of the local youth, meet-
ings of the campaign should be moved to the
Berner Club off Canon Street. The policy and
direction of the campaign were determined by
discussions at open meetings, the only excep-
tion being when legal issues were discussed.
The next court date was set for the 26 October
1993 and NMP immediately set about mailing
hundreds of anti-racist organisations and indi-
viduals across the country, including various
studentand tradeunions. Theresponse, though
slow at first, steadily picked up withthe cam-
paign being invited to meetings across the
country.

From picket to picket

Extensive development work carried out in
the community, including meetings in youth
clubs, colleges and local mosques, meant that
the second picket held by the campaign at-
tracted a great many more supporters. Inside
the court, the judge granted the nine bail and
told them to return to court in December.

But attendance at the third picket, on 21 De-
cember, was disappointing, with the bitter
cold and the tube strike certainly contributing
to the diminished numbers. Inside the court,

NEWHAM MONITORING PROJECT

. effecting the Tower Hamlets 9
were being made. And follow-
ing the hearing the police in-
structed the tvand printmedia to
hand over all film and photo-
graphs of the events that took
place outside Whitechapel hos-
pitalon 10September 1993. When
they refused, the police took the
media to the High Court - and
won!

Thirty police officers, and a riot
van, were deployed to cover the
fourth picket on 1 February 1994 which was
attended by 100 local youth, at least half of
whom were from Poplar College. The police
adoptedavery heavy-handed approach. Apart
from their actual numbers, the officers’ atti-
tude toward the demonstrators was extremely
aggressive, with some supporters attempting
to join the picket experiencing abuse from
individual officers and compilaining that their
leaflets were torn up. Furthermore, the police
took the extremely unusual step of stopping
members of the public from entering the court
building, which effected not only a pupil of the
barrister representing the nine but relatives of
defendants involved in other cases being heard
in courtthat day which had absolutely nothing
to do with the Tower Hamlets 9. Interestingly
enough, it was only black people who were
stopped, questioned and forced to explain their
reasons for attending court that day.

Why the police decided to adopt such a pro-
vocative profile is up for debate, for at each of
the three previous pickets in support of the 9,
there had been no disturbances, either inside
or outside the court; and the police presence
had been minimal.

But the police deployment outside the court
could not effect the proceedings inside the
courtroom, which marked the first real success
for the campaign.

As soon as the defendants arrived, the pros-
ecution held lengthy discussions with defence
lawyers. Eventually, prosecution lawyers in-
formed the court that they no longer wanted to
pursue the charge of riot against the nine as a

- however, important decisions -

whole and that the case against three of the
defendants would be dropped altogether. The
remaining six defendants, however, would
still face public order charges of a serious
nature, including violentdisorder and assault.
The news was greeted with cheers outside the
court.

Since then, the Tower Hamlets Nine campaign
has gone from strength to strength. Although
the priority is still to continue to protest at
every court appearance of the last six defend-
ants, the campaign has also been forced to take
on a number of other responsibilities. This has
included the campaign’s participation in the
organising-committee for the national TUC
‘Unity’ demonstration on 19 March - and re-
sponding to the horrific racist attack on
Mukhtar Ahmed.

The attack on Mukhiar Ahmed

On the 8th February at 11.30pm Mukhtar
Ahmed, a 19-year-old Asian youth, was at-
tacked by a gang of over 20 white youths on
Vallance Road,E1. Mukhtar didn’t know his
attackers. They had simply shouted “get the
paki” before running after Mukhtar and his
three friends. Mukhtar, who lived nearby, ran
in one direction, while his friends escaped in
the other. But the gang caught up with
Mukhtar. It was only due to the shouts of
passers-by that the gang stopped beating him
and ran off.

The savagery of the beating Mukhtar received
was truly horrific. It was effectively an attempt
tokillhim, by concentrating the full force of the
attack on his head. The rest of his body was
virtually unmarked, but his head injuries were
so severe that it was first feared he may not
survive.

Mubkhtar was admitted to the London Hospi-
tal’s intensive care unit (where Quddus Ali
had lain). By Wednesday morning, news of the
attack had spread throughout the community
and was accompanied by the reports of still
more attacks. An Asian man on the Isle of
Dogs was dragged from his car and beaten;
two young boys wereattacked outside Sir John
Cass school (one had a milk bottle smashed in
his face) and another youth was stabbed in the

“cheek.
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By Wednesday evening, it became éﬁiear, from
the response of many young people that they
wanted some action taken and Youth Connec-
tion and the Tower Hamlets Nine agreed to
organise a community vigil. Despite this, the

Anti Nazi League decided, with no hint of
consultation, it would callits own vigil outside

the London hospital. When members of Youth
Connection, the Tower Hamlets Nine and
Newham Monitoring Project objected vehe-
mently ata consultative meeting called at short
notice, the ANL ignored our criticisms (they
had even come to the meeting with posters
advertising an ANL vigil already printed up!)
Such blatant disregard for the struggles of the
local community continues to be a trademark
of the so-called national anti-racist groups.
However, regardless of such irritating diver-
sions, the community went on to organise its
own vigil on Friday 13th February. With only
one day available to mobilise, we managed to
gather over 400 people, mainly local youth, in
Altab Ali park to listen to speeches from local
representatives as wellas the family of Mukhtar
Ahmed. Meanwhile, the ANIL vigil, whichdrew
a crowd of twelve, was cancelled.
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Mulkhtar Ahmed

The protest at Altab Ali park was much more
thanjusta peaceful vigil againstracial violence
- it was a defiant shout from a community that
unfortunately still has to be wary of its allies.

At the time of writing, Mukhtar is making a
tremendous recovery and has been released
from hospital. We presently 160k forward to
the TUC demonstration against racism on 19th
March 1994. Hopefully the very genuine crisis
in East London will force unity and principled
support for the communities in struggle.
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InSeptember 1993, the fascist British National
Party (BNP) won its first election victory,
when Derek Beackon was elected as a local
councillor for the Millwall ward in Tower
Hamlets. This victory, resulting from the par-
ticular circumstances of urban decay and al-
ienation of local people, nevertheless gives a
clear indication of the increasing support for
fascism. This support, as we warned in last
year’s Annual Report, threatens to spread to
other parts of east London, and in particular to
areas like the south of Newham, which has a
history not only of popular racism but also of
being a potential recruiting ground for the far
right. In 1983, when the National Front (NF)
received only an average of 0.8 % of the vote
nationally, Newham South had the highest NF
vote in the country with 993 votes, represent-
ing 3.7 % of the poll. In earlier elections, they
did even better, gaining 4.7% in 1979 and 7.8%
(nearly three times the natjonal average) in
1974.

On 20 October 1993, NMP organised a public
meeting on anti-fascism and community re-
sistance, whichlaunched our campaign against
the use of racism for electoral gain during the
local government elections in May 1994. The
meeting was attended by over 100 people.
Harlier the same day Greater London Radio
(GLR) interviewed NMP about the campaign,
and then approached the BNP who announced
that they would be standing candidates in the
CustomHouse & Silvertown ward of Newham.
That this ward should be targeted is no acci-
dent. In a by-election in the same ward during
May 1993, Dave Gladstone, the Conservative
Party candidate and Chair of Newham South
Tenants Liaison Committee, distributed an
openly racist leaflet entitled ‘Ethnic Cleansing
in South Newham'’, which claims that the La-

bour council is engaged in ‘racial engineering
to change the ethnic make-up of our local
community and give Asians and Afro-
caribbeans a majority of new lettings’. Fol-
lowing widespread condemnation of this at-
tempt to play the race card, a second leaflet
was distributed by Newham South Con-
servatives after the election of Derek Beackon
in Millwall.

Just as in Millwall, mainstream political par-
ties are in a position to fuel popular racism. As
A Sivanandan notes, ‘the BNF did not giverise
to racism - racism gave rise to the BNP'. In-
creasing levels of racial harassment in Custom
House, Silver Town and other areas in the
south of Newham make these areas likely tar-
gets for the BNP. From the start, however,
NMP’s campaign has focused not only on the
BNP butalso on theuse of racism as a means of
getting votes and stirring up trouble.

The Election Campaign

Following the public meeting, NMP drew up a
list of BNP activists in Newham, based on
information fromcontacts around the borough.
These include:

B Steven O’ Connell, the senior BNTP activist in
Newham, who lives on Milner Road in West
Ham, which has a history of racist attacks.
O’'Connell has written to the Newham Recorder
who have obliged by printing his letters on a
number of occasions.

B Steven (O'Shea, a BNP activist, has been
linked to serious racial harassment on Folke-
stone Road in East Ham. He was also partofa
gang who attacked a black man in the Blind
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Beggar Pub in |
Bethnal Green §
during the |
Millwall by- |
election.

BMark Tweedy,
a BNTP activist,
who lives on
Woodford Road
in ForestGate, is
known to have
run for the BNP
in the London
Marathon in®
1987. He is sus-
pected of being
responsible for the daubing of the house of two
ANL supporters in Stratford.

1evn0 Connell fr .
Miiner Rd in Stratford

& Nicky Cooper, who lives in Skipsey Road in
East Ham, is a member of Combat 18, the
paramilitary fascist group. Hewasinvolvedin
an assault on two Asian youths in Mile End.

We established that BNP members in New-
hammeet and drinkin a pub in Canning Town
beforegoing toleaflet estates inthe south of the
borough. We, therefore, asked supporters to
inform us whenever the BNP distribute leaf-
lets so that an immediate response could be
organised. NMP anti-fascist Ieaflets have been
given out in Rathbone Street Market, where
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Derek Beackon in Rathbone St Market
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the BN have held an irregular papetsale, and
in areas like Custom House, Silvertown and
Canning Town. A network of around fifty
local people has been set up to ensure that the
response is both regular and swift. The aim of
this strategy has been to informlocal people of
the bankruptcy of BNP policies and what the -
implications of these policies would be for the
local community.

In order to encourage community opposition
to attempts to play the race card in the forth-
coming elections, an advert was placed in the
Newham News in February 1994, asking for
local voluntary, religious and community or-
ganisations, councillors, MPs and tenants’
and residents” associations to affiliate to our
campaign. A second advert in March 1994,
includes a wide range of local groups, includ-
ing West Ham United Football Club, pledging
to support the fight against the BNP and the
use of racism by any political party in the
elections. The purpose of this very simple
public statementis not only to presenta united
response to the threat of the BNP but also to
make anti-racism an issue for the elections in
Newham. Hopefully the campaign will act as
a spur for local anti-racists not to dismiss,
because of what happened in Tower Hamlets,
the possibility of effective action against the
BNP.

To date, the fascists have not had it all their
own way on the streets of Custom House.
Local residents have chased off members of
the BNP who were seen leafletting in the area.
It was becoming quite clear that some local
people were becoming more aware of the im-
plications of BNF activity in their area and
were willing to act. Concerns about the
violence thatinvariably accompanies the BNP's
presence was showninSilvertown, wheretwo
black men were brutally attacked by BNP sup-
porters in two separate incidents in early Feb-
ruary 1994.

As the elections draw nearer, NMP’s cam-
paign will intensify, for we are aware of the
size of the task that lies ahead. ’lglthough the
BNP, which will be concentrating its tiny
membership on work in the Isle of Dogs, is
unlikely to win a seat, it could potentially do
well in an area which shares many character-
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istics with Millwall - isolated geographically
from the rest of the borough, largely over-
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of Newham!

NMP's leaflet against the BNP

looked when funding is allocated, with few
organisations left which genuinely represent
local people. On the day of the election, NMP
plans to organise transport for isolated black
families in south Newham who are worried
about their safety. In the long-term, however,
the BNP will only be marginalised by vibrant,
locally-based and active community campaigns
which place demands upon local elected rep-
resentatives - in other words, by offering a
political alternative to the BNP. This is the
challenge facing mainstream politicians and
anti-fascists committed to smashing fascism.

NMP has long argued that for campaigning
against racism and fascism to be effective, it
must be organised at a local level within
communities. The way forward must be to
respond to local issues of concern and provide
a consistent and principled service in areas
where black people live under siege. National
activities, whilst important in publicising the
truth about fascism, are no substitute for local
action, and their impact on local communities
where there is the potential for BNP support is
minimal. This is why NMPs campaign is
concentrating on local work.

The other major issue of the past year has been
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the way that the police haveresponded to anti-
fascist demonstrations. Public order legisla-
tionintroduced inthe 1930s to restrict Mosley’s
Blackshirts from marching in east London is
increasingly used against the opponents of,
and in order to defend, today’s fascists. This
must surely be an important lesson for those
who call for the BNP to be banned: legislation
of this kind will undoubtedly be used to pro-
scribe organisations on the left and anti-fascist
groups. It is impossible for ideas to be banned,
and a state ban on the BNP will do nothing to
undermine the popular racism which provides
fascism withits base of support on white estates
in east London.

The BNP bookshop

The BNP’s headquarters/bookshop in Well-
ing has long been a focus for national anti-
fascist activity. There have been a number of
demonstrations which have passed the book-
shop, and a long-running campaign to per-
suade Bexley council to shut it down. In 1993,
following the racist murder of Stephen Law-
rence in Eltham, around 3,000 people attended
amarchinWelling organised by Youth Against
Racism in Europe (YRE). The BNP headquar-
ters became the target of the anger of the
marchers and was bombarded with missiles.
Riot policeand police on horseback responded
by charging protesters, which resulted in fif-
teen demonstrators being taken to hospital.

On 16 October 1993, the Anti-Nazi League
(ANL)and the YRE, underthe banner of Unity,
again called on anti-racists from across the
country to join a march against the BNT head-
quarters. The march was attended by over 30,
000 people, and was supported by a range of
black and anti-racist organisations, including
NMP. Inthe weeks preceding the march, there
had been a number of vicious racist attacks
across London, including theattack on Quddus
Ali and, on the weekend of the march, an
attack on a man in Ilford, who was brutally
assaulted and beaten and then run over by the
assailants in his own car.

Fromthestart, the police presence on the dem-
onstration waslittleshort ofa military exercise,
planned and executed to what appeared to be

Police lines a

a pre-determined outcome. When the police
deliberately blocked the route agreed with the
march organisers, a violent situation was engi-
neered with large numbers of people unable to
move in any direction. Consequently, the po-
lice charged into the crowd of demonstrators
with horses and riot shields, attacking people
at random.

Inthe aftermath of the Welling demonstration,
NMP’s response was to condemn the way that
the police approached what was organised as
a peaceful protest. Riot police with CS gas
prominently on display were deployed at the
assembly point, and the rhetoric of senior po-
lice officers in the days prior to the demon-
stration was such that police officers attending
the march expected a fight - indeed, if, as the
police claim, there was a ‘hard core” of dem-
onstrators who turned up to battle the police,
thenitis hardly surprising since the police had
billed the march as a battle from the start.

The media’s response to the Unity march was
predictable. Not only did they condemn the
organisers but they also attempted to portray
the anti-racist movement as having respect-
able and violent faces, the former role being
taken by the Anti-Racist Alliance (ARA)which
organised its own demonstration of 3,000
people in Central London on the same day.
Unfortunately, thesquabbles betweenthe ANL
and the ARA have since degenerated even
further. Channel4’s shameful Devil's Advocate
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e Welling march in May 1993 - in October the police were better prepared

debate between Paul Holborow of the ANL
and Marc Wadsworth of the ARA plunged the
anti-racist movement to new depths of bitter
sectarianism and tried to reduce anti-racismin
this country to a dispute between the two
groups. Wadsworth, in condemning the vio-
lence of the ANL, accepted the police version
of events and thus ignored the anger of black
community groups across the country who
were on the march and who experienced
police violence at first hand. Such ‘left-bating’
isunacceptable and playsinto the hands of our
common enemies.

There is an urgent need for consistent and
principled unity in action. In that sense, the
Welling march was a positive attempt to unite
the divided anti-racist movement in one mas-
sive show of strength against the BNP. But for
the anti-racist movement to have a wider im-
pact in defending black communities and de-
feating white racism, a demonstration now
and again is not enough. We must learn the
lessons of history. We must build communi-
ties of resistance across the country in order to
challenge the forces of racism and fascism. We
must refuse toallow our enemies todivideand
ruleus. We must organise agld unite in practi-
cal activity whenever the need arises. For to
engage in pelly sectarianism in These danger-
ous times is to fail our communities. This we
must aveid at all costs.
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To say that the British media has developed
racial hysteria into an art form is to state the
obvious. Race reporting in Britain is charged
with sensationalism and the stereotyping of
black people. NMP has always recognised
that the press are more concerned with
manufacturing public opinion than presenting
orreporting news. Itis certainly notinterested
ininvestigating theissuesunderlying thenews.
At best such issues provide sensationalist
headline items whichdisappear justas quickly
as they came.

The black community is today under siege
from the racist hype of the media. When the
press is not busy reporting on the influx of
drugs into good old Britain by yardies, it is
examining black sexuality or highlighting the
‘exotic” cultures of “Third World” peoples. But
of course the press is at its most confident
when reporting on issues here at home. A
policeman dies and attention is focused on
Jamaican yardies. There is an immediate
scramble to visit Jamaica and make pro-
grammes on yardie cultureand how itislinked
to ‘black crime’ in Britain. Joy Gardner is
murdered by immigration police and the na-
tional debate is centred around the ‘violence’
of black women, the influx of illegalimmigrants
and, most importantly, how to deport them.

Stephen Lawrence is killed and the headlines
are about the fact that black people are unsafe
in Britain, and not about why they are unsafe.
Quddus Ali is attacked and the pattern, of
sensationalised treatment but no serious in-
vestigation, is repeated. Mukhtar Ali is vi-
ciously attacked in East London. Anotherrace
statistic. And the beat goes on...and on.

It is in light of this that NMP continues to
monitor the coverage of race issues in both
local and national press, to keep tabs on
emerging trends in racist reporting in order to
effectively challenge the media.

Reporting demonstrations.

“Anatomy of a race hate riot”, this was how
the Evening Standard of 18 October 1993 saw fit
todescribe the largestanti-racistdemonstration
in over a decade which took place in Welling,
south London where the BNP has its national
headquarters, and was attended by approxi-
mately 40,000 people. Billedasa ‘Unity Demo’,
the march was sponsored and attended by a
wide range of black and anti-racist organisa-
tions.

~ Even before the march took place, it was ad-

vertised by the press, who predicted violence,
as a ‘race hate protest’. The way in which
events were subsequently reported made the
kind of evening TV news and Sunday paper
headlines that black people have become ac-
customed to. In the aftermath of the march,
most broadcast and print media talked of little
else other than the violence that took place that
day, or, if they did manage to go further than
this, they were concerned about fascism in a
generalised way. Predictably, there has been
significantly less concern from the media about
the nature of racist attacks that have taken
place, the majority of which are not organised
by the fascists. There is a distinctive lack of
column inches detailing the extent to which
mainstream politicians have not only played
the race card but have also orchestrated a
climate whereby a naked racism struts with-
out shame.

Another example of this kind of racist media
hype is the reporting which preceded the Joy
Gardner protest march in north London on 7
August 1993. On this occasion, the press, iniits
wisdom, predicted that the streets of north
London would be used as a battleground as
the black community were bent on revenging
Joy’sdeath. Itwas notaquestion of ifbut when
the predicted violent backlash would occur.

This media propaganda of ‘black violence’

was so successful that on the day of the march
itself, virtually all shops in the Hornsey area of
north London were boarded up. There were
even more policemen than there were march-
ers. AsJoyherself had been widely reported to
be a very ‘violent” woman, presumably the
same could be expected from those who came
to protest over her death.

These portrayals of black people, which are
only too typical, totally demean the lives of
black people in Britain and ignore the black
experience and the black perspectives.

No Platform for Fascists.

It has long been the position of principled anti-
racists and anti-fascists not to share any plat-
form with fascists as doing so would be tan-
tamount to legitimising them. Thus, anti-fas-
cists have not only urged journalists to deny
fascists the public space in which to air their
views but have also declined to participate in
studio discussions with fascists.

It was with this broad understanding that
participants in the BBC’s “After Millwall’ pro-
gramme and Channel 4's ‘Bloody Foreigners’
agreed to take part in the two programmes.
But the programmes raised fundamental
questions about journalists understanding of
the "No platform’ policy.

While both programmes effectively supplied
the fascists with the oxygen of publicity,
Channel4’s ‘Bloody Foreigners’ went onestep
further. It gave viewers the fabricated im-
pression that both fascists and anti-fascists
alike were in the same studio to discuss and
debate the pros and cons of fascism. This was
totally dishonest of the producers and was
rightly condemned. But we have come to ex-
pect such dishonesty from the media which
goes o great lengths to protect the freedom of
speech of fascists!

As CARF has argued, weak and ineffectual
interviewing of fascists by journalists who are
not equipped with the facts and who fail to ask
probing questions, only serves to supply the
fascists with a platform to propagandise their
views. Journalists ought to be aware of the
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immense power which the medium of televi-
sion gives the fascists to air their poisonous
views and present a violent, undemocratic
creed in acceptable terms.

One of the most powerful weapons which we =
have at our disposal in fighting and unmask-
ing nazis and educating the public about fas-
cism’s undemocratic nature is television. Fas-
cism is not a set of ideas that can be politely
discussed. Therefore, by debating with Fascists,
rather than relegating them to the margins of
society where they rightly belong, we are help-
ing to bring fascist views into mainstream
political debate. When television then aids
fascists by giving themanopen platform to put
forward a palatable and respectable image, it
undermines the efforts of ant-fascists to expose
the nazis for what they really are - violent
common criminals.

NMP challenge Channel 4.

NMP, who participated in ‘Bloody Foreign-
ers’, wrote a strongly worded letter of protest
to the producers of the ITN programme which
was shown on Channel4 on7 November, 1993.
Weexpressed our outrageatthe fact thatin the
present climate of rising racist activity, pro-
ducers of this programme saw fit to give fas-
cists from across Europe, who blatantly lied
about the nature and activities of their or-
ganisations, an unprecedented platform to air
their views.

We were appalled at the fact that the pro-
gramme’s panel included representatives of
some of the most extreme groups on the Eu-
ropean fascist scene. We registered our dis-
gust at the dishonesty of the programme’s
editprs who manipulated viewers into believ-
ing that fascists and anti-fascists were in the
same studio which was decidedly not the case.
We also condemned the irresponsible manner
in which the programme was produced and
presented. .
Channel 4's reply stating that th‘é??programme
was ‘a good first stab at covering a difficult
subject’ is totally unacceptable. Itis sad to note
that the present vogue within television is to
debate fascism, rather than investigate it. This




islazy and irresponsible journalismat its worst
and NMP will challenge this at every opportu-
nity.

NMP and the
media.

Despite our thorough dissat-
isfaction with race reporting
in the media, NMP still
makes itself available for
commentor interview by the
media which frequently
contact us as a first port of
call for grassroots anti-racist
perspectives. It goes with-
out saying that the black
press are on the whole more
objective in their reporting
of race issues, whereas it is
often difficult to distinguish
between the so-called quality papers and the
tabloid press.

Below are some of the media - local, national and international, who have contacted NMP over the

past year:
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Work across East London.

As a result of NMP’s experience and high
profile, people across East London have been
increasingly turning to us for help and support.
We have been inundated with demands from
residents and organisations in Tower Hamlets,
Redbridge, Waltham Forest and Barkingé
Dagenham, to assist in both racial harassment
and police harassment work. Attimeswehave
been overwhelmed by the sheer volume of
new work, particularly from areas wherethere
are no independent community organisations
raising issues of racism.

Inrecognition of the rising tide of racist violence
across East London, the London Boroughs
Grants Unit awarded us funding for one full-
time worker, with effect from 1 April 1993, in
order that we could extend our casework and
community development work to the boroughs
bordering Newham.

Elsewhere in this report, we have highlighted
some of NMP’s cases from across East London.
Below we examine several initiativesin which
NMP has been instrumental in mobilising
support for black Eastenders under attack.

Racism in Hackney

B The Hui family contacted NMP in March
1993. They had been the victims of a vicious
campaign of racial harassment, their car was
daubed with racist graffiti, Mr Hui was the
victim of a brutal assault, Mrs Hui was attacked
when five months pregnantand spent six weeks
in hospital due to internal bleeding. They were
systematically abused, threatened and intimi-
dated. Mr and Mrs Hui complained to Hackney
Council on many occasions and approached
several other organisations for help, without
success. The only council response was to offer
the family a permanent home on the very estate
where Mr Hui had been assaulted! Not sur-
prisingly, Mr and Mrs Hui refused this property,
believing they would be made one further offer.
However, the council insisted that their refusal
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to accept the offer not only meant that they had ..

forfeited their right to a further offer but also
that they had made themselves intentionally
homeless and that the council were no longer
responsible for their housing needs.

NMP picket of Hackney Council

This case illustrates quite clearly that Hack-
ney Council’s racial harassment policy is not
worth the paperitis written on. Outraged and
frustrated by the Council’s refusal to act in the
case, NMP, with the support of over fifty local
residents, organised the Hui Family Campaign.
Wedecided to take our concerns directly to the
council’s Housing Services Committee meet-
ing. We requested permission to present a
deputation at the meeting. The council not
only denied us permission but also did not
havethecourtesy toreply to our request, which
was signed by over 30 local residents, until the
actual day of the meeting. The supporters of
the Hui family were so infuriated by the lack
of concern shown by the council, that they
decided to attend the meeting anyway and
force the council to respond to their concerns.
What followed was a disgraceful show of the
council’s disregard for the concerns of local
residents as all fifty supporters of the Hui
Family Campaign were forcibly removed from
the public gallery by security guards.

However, this did not weakeﬁ%the fighting
spirit of those involved in the campaign. A
public meeting was held in July 1993, and it
was decided that the issues raised by this case
had to be addressed and that it was vital that
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Hackney Council be held to account for the
Hui family. In August 1993, Mr and Mrs Hui,
their supporters and NMP dominated a Kilroy
TV episode on racial harassment. We contin-
ued to put pressure on the counciland support
Mr and Mrs Hui until eventually the council
had no choice but to give way and Mr and Mrs
Hui were rehoused in a safer neighbourhood,
but Hackney Council’s despicable conduct in
this matter highlights once again how statutory
agencies fail to respond effectively to racial
harassment without constant pressure from
community organisations prepared to stand
with local people and challenge the authori-
ties.

Walthamstow Asion Youth
Movement

Waltham Forest has witnessed an increase in
the number of racist attacks over the past year.
The case of Mrs Sharma in particular, attracted
national media coverage. She was the victimof
a horrific campaign of harassment. The statu-
tory agencies failed adequately to help or
support her. This case so enraged local youth
that they decided that something had to be
done. They formed the Asian Youth Movement
(AYM) and contacted NMP for advice and
guidance about how to address problems of
racism in their area and how to help victims of
racial harassment. They called for a march
through Walthamstow to express their outrage
at the council and police response to racial
harassment. About ahundred people marched
through Walthamstow in an encouraging
display of community organisation and re-
sistance. The AYM have continued their
campaigning work. They have spoken at
several schools and colleges in Waltham For-
est, printed leaflets highlighting the problems
in their area, circulated a petition condemning
the failure of the statutory agencies to tackle
racial harassmentand managed tocollectmore
than a hundred signatures. NMP assisted in
facilitating many of these activities, and we
have also undertaken several joint initiatives
with the AYM.
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Oliver Campbeil

Justice for Oliver Campbell

NMP continues to campaign on behalf of those
who have been unjustly imprisoned. Take the
case of Oliver Campbell. Oliver was found
guilty of murdering a Hackney shopkeeper in
July 1990. He was given a life sentence in
December 1991. Oliver has always protested
his innocence and believes he was ‘fitted up’
by the police. Of particular concern is the fact
that Oliver has severe learning difficulties and
is highly suggestible. Indeed, Oliver was con-
victed mainly on the basis of a garbled confes-
sion he gaveunder pressure without a solicitor
present. No forensic or reliable eye witness
evidence was ever presented by the prosecu-
tion in their case against Oliver. The prosecu-
tion did, however, offer the very unreliable
and circumstantial evidence that Oliver had
once owned a cap similar to the one found at
the scene of the murder, even though the cap
found did not have any hair or skin samples
that matched Oliver’s. Weare hopeful that the
Court of Appeal will quash Oliver’s convic-
tion.

NMP have been working closely with friends
of Oliver in organising and supporting the
Justice for Oliver Campbell Campaign. In July

1993, we were part of a delegation that raised
concerns about Oliver’s conviction at a full
meeting of Newham Council. In September
1993, we organised a public meeting where
speakers from other miscarriage of justice
campaigns, the M25 and Winston Silcott de-
fence campaigns spoke in support of Oliver.
The meeting was a great success with over 80
people in attendance. In November 1993, we
organised a benefit to raise funds to continue
the fight to free Oliver. His appeal will be
heard shortly.

Black people are time and again victims of
miscarriages of justice. NMP is committed to
challenging the police and judicial system in
order to ensure that the lives of innocent black
people are not destroyed by yet more miscar-
riages of justice.

Local and National Links

Throughout 1993, NMP was inundated with
requests to speak al meeting and conferences,.
We were also visited by groups and individu-
als from around Britain and across the world.

Locally, we have visited and spoken at many
schools, colleges and youth clubs including
Forest Gate School, Woodside School and East
Ham College. Increasingly students from
schoolsand colleges havestarted touse the 382
Centre as a resource base, particularly our
library. However, many young people just
drop in to find out more about NMP, how we
fight racism and most importantly, how they
can get involved. We hope to strengthen our
relationship with local schools and colleges
and we hope that in time more young people
will become involved in local campaigns and
initiatives.

We have been invited to speak about a whole
range of issues at universities across London, (
eg London School of Economics, University of
East London, University College of London,
School of Oriental and African Studies) and
nationally , ( eg Essex University and York
University). Also we have spoken at numer-
ous colleges and youth clubs across the coun-
try. These visits allow us to share our experi-
ences, but equally important to keep up-to-
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date withdevelopmentsand initiativesaround

g
the country. We look forward to continuing
this work and establishing new relationships
as well as maintaining old friendships.

Nationally, we have been involved in various
initiatives. We were invited to Coventry to
launch the Coventry Anti-racial Harassment ~
and Attacks Network (CAHAN). We ran
waorkshops on how NMP organises within the
black community. We welcomethe increase in
black community-based and community-led
initiatives - this is the only effective and long
term strategy for combating racism.

Numerousindividuals and groups have visited
the project from as far away as Brazil and the
USA. Closer to home, we have been visited by
representatives of community groupsand anti-
racist projects in Germany, Belgium, Holland
and France.
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# Available from NMP

Annual Reports (1983-1992)

Newham: The Forging of a Black Community
(1991)

History of the struggles of the post-war black
community in Newham (published jointly with
the CARF).

Racism angd Racist Violence in Schools (1990)

Bt

Newham Monitoring leject Exhibitions Campaign Against Newham Monitor

The History of Racismin the East End (23 panels) Raicism & Eascism Quarterly bulletin of
Conspiracy (12 panels), which documents (CARF) magazine NMP dei;iling cases
Qiffel‘"en.tcampaigns and struggles of black people Copies available from ca;npaigns nd ‘
n Britain. ' NMP or on subscription  commumity resistance
NMP has an extensive library on issues relating to from BM Box 8784, in Newham. Free to

racism, fascism and policing. Telephone for detdails. London WCIN 3XX members, copies 30p.

Affiliction to NMP is open o anyone who lives or works in Newham and agrees with the constitu-
tional ains and objectibes of the project

Art of Change* » Asian Ltd » Australian Institute of Criminology* * Beckton Against Racism » Behno-Ki-
Milan ¢ Bengali National Association e Black Justice Project* » Birnbergs & Co Solicitors » Cairde Na
nGael ¢ CALA Training Centre* » CAPA* § » City of London Anti-Apartheid Group* » Columbian
Fathers » Community Links  Cumberland School NUT Group ¢ Defend the Deane Family Campaign
East London Teachers*  Eastwards Trust (Hostels) Ltd * Edward Son and Noice Solicitors e Fellowship
House Asian Womens’ Project ® Fight Racism! Fight Imperialism! » Forest Gate Youth Centre » General
Union of Palestinian Women (UK)* » Greenwich Action Committee Against Racist Attacks (GACARA)*
Gujarat Welfare Association ® Gwendoline Avenue Community Association Inquest* ¢ Jewish Socialist
Group*® e Justice for the Dray Family Campaign » Justice for Oliver Campbell Campaign = Little Ilford
Youth Centre » Leeds TUC* » LSE Women'’s Group* ® Manor Park “Faith in the Community” Project »
Newham Asian Women'’s Project « Newham Citizens’ Advice Bureau * Newham Community Advice
Unit » Newham Community College Students’ Union * Newham Community Housing Ltd ¢ Newham
Consortium for Youth » Newham Drugs Project ® Newham Gatekeepers » Newham Rights Centre o
Newham UNISON » Newham Voluntary Agencies Council » Nottingham Anti-Fascist Action* » Ocean
Youth™  » One Love Community Association ¢ Plashet School NUT Group * Poplar College Students’
Union* } ¢ Racial Harassment Project (Sheffield)* o Sheffield Community Safety Unit* ® SARI* e Second
Avenue Community Association @ Sherico Care Homes  SOLON CHS* » South Newham Action on
Policing e Theatre Royal Stratford ¢ Tom Allen Community Arts Centre » Tower Hamlets Against
Racism™ § ¢ Tower Hamlets Anti-Racist Committee* § ® Tower Hamlets Nine Defence Campaign* { »
University of East London Students’ Union * University of Brighton Students’ Union* » Vicarage School,
PHU e Waltham Forest Trade Union and Community Resource Centre* » Workers’ Power* ¢ Youth
Connection* {

* Other organisations which support and agree with the aims and objectives of NMP although not based
in Newham. f Organisations based in Tower Hamlets

¥

INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 1993

INCOME 1993 1992
£ >
Grant Funding 111018 117933
Other Income 2237 4137
113 255 122070
EXPENDITURE
Salaries and National Insurance 67 841 64 844
Rent, Rates, Light and Heat 2187 3 440
Repairs and Maintenance 4141 3527
Insurance 1390 1515
Telephone 4731 5014
Stationary, Postage & Office Material 6198 8278
Printing, Publicity and Reports 8455 14 018
Literature and Subscriptions 652 839
Audit and Accountancy 2398 1592
Legal and Professional Fees 460 913
Courses, Conference and Training 1840 3536
Motor, Travel and Subsistence Expenses 3090 5038
Volunteers’ Expenses 1161 3046
Bank Charges 316 168
Equipment Purchased - 2985
Recruitment Advertising 4 542 2520
Sundry 295 -
Book Expenses - 2252
109 697 123 435
Taxation 890 (126)
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 4 468 (1491}
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH
1993
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors & Prepayments 19122 2 366
Cash at Bank and in Hand 7 657 22155
26779 » 24 561
CURRENT LIABILITIES -
Creditors and Accrued Expenses 12 381 . 18 089
NET CURRENT ASSETS 14 398 6472
Represented by —
Accumulated Surplus 7 749 . 3301
Defence Fund 6 649 3171
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A STATEMENT

” We, as Newham-based groups and individuals, wish to express our opposition to racially motivated violence, and our support
to black and Asian residents of the borough suffering as a result of such violence. We note the 420 racial attacks in 1993, and the
fwo racist murders in the borough in the last two years. Against this background, we are gravely concerned that these attacks will
increase if raciem is used as a means of winning votes in the local government elections in May 1994. In particular, Hhe decision
of fascists to stand candidates has to be viewed with extreme alarm. Already, they have started to spread their poison in the
community by bringing in teams of leafletters from outside the borough to peddle their vacist filth.

We call upon all the other political parties and all our communities in Newham to unite against the fascist threat and against any
atlemptby anyparty touseracismforelectoral gain, We refect atiempts to scapegoat any section of the community for the economic
and soctal problems that this borough faces, We believe in equal rights for the whole of the community in Newham, in securingbetter
housing, education and other social needs. The fascists have no policy to meet these needs, only violence and harassment of local
residents,”

THIS STATEMENT [S SUPPORTED BY:

West Ham United Football Club « South Canning Town Detached Youth Project « Community Links * Royal Victoria Dock Water Sports
Centre ¢ Custom House Baptist Church * Newham Asian Women's Project * Eastwards Trust (Hostels) Ltd ¢ One Love Community
Association « Emmanuel Youth Project » Docklands Action for Community Enterprise ¢ Community Development Team, Winsor Park
Community Centre * Dockiands Citizens Advice Bureau » Newham Sixth Form College « Newham Alcohol Advisory Service » Theatre
Royal Stratforde Young Black Women's Project » University of East Londan Students’ Union » Beckton Ecumnendcal Team of Mindsters
* NEWTEC » Credit Union Development in Newham ¢ Newham Action Against Domestic Violence + Shortstop Housing Project »
Newham Black and Ethnic Minority Community Care Forum ¢ East London Small Business Centre * Greater Sylhet Friends Assoc. o
Lister Community Assoc. » Asian Ltd * African Caribbean Resource Centre St James Church » Vicarage Lane Centre ¢ Newham
Women's Activities Project = Assoc. of Brothers Union » Community of Zairean Refugees in GB * Newham CRE ¢ Cairde Na nGael »
Refugee Forum » Christian Care Centre + St Johns Church, Stratford » Newham United Reformed Churches Group * Newham Play
Assoc.  Newham Pensioners Forum » Age Concern Newham * Single Homeless Project » Bemersyde Point Tenants and Residents
Assoc.e Rodinglea HA ¢ Benjamin Zephaniah  Sheltered Accomodation Residents Assoc. » Newham Care and Repair » Sub-Co Elders
Day Centre * Mankuva Seva Mandal » Canning Town Muslim Welfare Assoc, » Gujarat Welfare Assoc »Church Action on Poverty o
Newham UNISON » Rev. Julian Scharf » West Ham and Upton Park Synagogue * St. Francis of Assisi Stratford Justice and Peace Group
* Columban Fathers  Bengali National Assaciation ¢ Racial Justice Group (Brentwood Diocese)  Justice and Peace Group {Forest Gate)
# ClIr. Alex Thomson {Ind.) ¢ Clir, Fred Jones {(Lib-Dem) * All Labour Coungillors, LBEN = All Prospective Labour Candidates (May 1994
Local Elections) = South Newham Action on Policing * R. Cole » D. Howells » P. Donavan » D, Jayawardane + K. Piper » F. Giorgi »
. Connor ¢ 5. Davanegra ¢ C. Condon # J. Wrafter » Rev, Burke » Sr. Horgan = Bruce Kent » M. Kelly * B. Patel » L.Garfield » Alf Lomas
MEP » Carole Tongue MEP ¢ Tony Banks MP » StSaviour's Church, Forest Gate + Tamil Welfare Assoc » Newham Community Housing
* P & CStack » Studio 3 « M. Dommett (Prospective Lib Dem Candidate, May Elections}  Clir Jim Newstead ¢ Euro Driving Centre
* Newham Liberal Democrats « Fellowship House Asian Women's Project » Solon Heusing » Clays Lane Housing Co-op + Oliver Stoll
* 5 Goswarni « Newham IWA » Peter Skyte, London Regional Officer MSF » Coffeemnan Ilford  Rev Jehn Whitwell, Little [Iford Rectory
* Newham Deanery Synod = Action and Rights of Disabled People in Newham » Council Workers Against the Nazis « Refugee and
Migrants Action Group * Erjtrean Association in East London * Newham Bengali Community Trust ® Katharine Rumens * Newham
United Tamil Assoc + Asian Assoc » Newham Lesbian Group * International Centre for Tamil Affairs »Clir Lew Boyce + Sickle Cell
Soctety (East London) ¢ Neighbourhood Care Project * UK Hindi Samiti (Newham Branch) * Newham African Caribbean Alliance
Newham North West Labour Party » Memorial Baptist Church Plaistow » Rhona Badham * Theatre Venture ¢ Clir Graham Lane * Aston
Community Involvement Unit ¢ Beckton Against Racism * Newham Women's Support Group, The Froud Centre * Evangelical
Christians for Racial Justice » Clir Alec Kellaway St Andrews Church ¢ Newham Renewal Programme * Justice for Oliver Campkbell
Campaign

NEWHAM MONITORING PROJECT (NMP)

is a loeal community organisation which provides practical advice and support to those sutfering racial harassment, We
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